


June 27, 2014

Honourable D. Shane Gibson, M.P.
Minister of Labour & National Insurance
Poinciana Hill

New Providence

Bahamas

Dear Minister Gibson:

Re: The National Insurance Board’s 2013 Annual Report

In accordance with Section 47(1) of the National Insurance Act, 1972, I have the privilege of submitting to you, on behalf
of the Board, the Annual Report of the National Insurance Board for the year 2013.

Included with this report are the accounts of the National Insurance Fund as certified by the Auditor, pursuant to

Section 47(1) of the National Insurance Act, 1972, together with the report of the Auditor. Included therein is the account
of securities in which monies forming part of the National Insurance Fund are invested.

Sincerely yours,

‘&Hﬁ'ﬁlﬁ""
—

Rev. Dr. James Moultrie
Chairman
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Vision

To be recognized as a reliable and sustainable Social Protection System
that consistently meets its mandate.

Mission

To demonstrate visionary and responsible leadership in the administration of the Na-
tional Insurance program, and to create an environment where staff are well trained,
motivated, and committed to integrity and accountability.

To ensure the efficient collection of contributions, as well as the timely and accurate
payment of the relevant benefits and assistance.

To achieve customer service excellence in the delivery of the
National Insurance mandates.

To advance the prudent investments of the National Insurance
Fund for the overall growth and development of The Bahamas
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Honourable D. Shane Gibson, M.P.
Minister of Labour & National Insurance

Rev. Dr. James Moultrie
Chairman

Bernard Evans

Deputy Chairman

Dr. Glen Beneby
Member

Philip Beneby Ernest Cambridge
Member Member

L

Bishop Harry Collie
Member

Ann Hunt Jayson Moxey
Member Member

Frederick Munnings, Jr.
Member

Merrit Storr Marquista Thompson
Member Member

Members were re-appointed/appointed with effect from July 2013. Outgoing members, serving to June 2013, were Dr. Josephine Bartlett, Patrick Davis, and Linda Evans.
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CONTRACTS & TENDERS COMMITTEE
Jayson Moxey - Chairman
Merrit Storr - Member
Bishop Harry Collie - Member
Dr. Glen Beneby - Member
Johnnie Taylor - Member
Renae McKay - Member

FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE
Pedro Delaney - Chairman
Frederick Munnings Jr. - Member
Bishop Harry Collie - Member
Ernest Cambridge - Member
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Committees of the Board

2013

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Dr. James Moultrie - Chairman
Philip Beneby - Member
Marquista Thompson - Member
Ernest Cambridge - Member
Claudine Thompson - Member
Andrew Strachan - Member

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Bernard Evans - Chairman
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Ann Hunt - Member
Franklyn Clarke - Member

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION
(including Legislative and Legal Affairs)
Merrit Storr - Chairman

Jayson Moxey - Member
Frederick Munnings Jr. - Member
Marquista Thompson - Member
Dr. Glen Beneby - Member
Dr. Michael Cooper - Member
Mr. Leon Williams - Member




Executive Management
Team - 2013
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Sr. Deputy Director
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2013 Annual Report - 3

Dr. Kevin Bowe Abraham Butler Anthony Curtis Gerard Elliott

Medical Officer Deputy Director Assistant Director Assistant Director
Human Resources and Family Islands and . .
Training Operations - Training New Providence Operations

Sonia Gill

Financial Controller

Phaedra Knowles Heather Maynard
Deputy Director Legal Officer
Investments

Whitney Patton
Chief Internal Auditor

Yvette Sands Dr. Raymond Wells
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Report on Operations

Despite the weak economic environment, contribution income grew by 13.0% and once again exceeded benefit
expenditure for the third consecutive year. However, investment income for 2013 saw a slight decline over the previ-
ous year. The majority of the growth in contributions was due to contribution amendments that affected hospitality
workers and Pensionable Civil Servants.

In 2013, total comprehensive income was $33.7 million, bringing reserves from $1.653 billion to $1.687 billion.

The following table provides results for key performance indicators for NIB finances in 2013 with comparative
figures for 2012.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS % CHANGE

Total Net Contribution Income $229.4m $203.0m 13.0%
Investment Income 86.3 m 88.6 m

Benefits Expenditure 222.7m 199.8 m 11.5%

Expenditure of National Prescription Drug Plan 9.5m 7.0m 35.7%
Administrative Expenditure 45.1m 57.8 m -22.0%

.| Total Comprehensive Income 33.7m 25.1m 34.3%
1,687 m 1,653 m
1,580 m 1,545 m
5.0% 5.0%
Administrative Expenditure as % of Contribution Income (Gross)” 19.6% 28.4% -31.0%

| Year-end Reserves

| Year-end Investments

Yield on Investments

| 22012 revised from 25.9%
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Contribution income moved to $229.4 million for the year from $203.0 mil-
lion for 2012, a growth of 13.0 percent over 2012. This growth was mainly
due to two contribution amendments that took effect July 1, 2013. Hospitality
workers who receive formally paid gratuities now pay contributions on the
gratuities. Pensionable civil servants now pay on same ceiling and rate as other
workers. They previously paid contributions on $110 per week for long-term
benefits rather than on total earnings up to the ceiling. A portion of this growth
is due to an increase in interest collected on arrears. Interest on late paid con-
tributions collected in 2013 were $414,500 compared to $157,230 in 2012.
This significant difference is mainly due to an Interest initiative organized in
April 2013 by the Operations division that consistently applies interest on late
paid contributions.

Benefit expenditure continues to grow across the benefit types - long-term,
short-term and industrial. Benefit payments for the year totalled $222.7 mil-
lion compared to $199.8 million paid in 2012, an increase of 11.5%.

Long-term expenditure grew as the pensions in payment continue to increase
each year. The increase in industrial benefits is mainly due to increased Med-
ical Care payments.

Benefit Type 2013 2012

Long-term $169.4 m $154.6 m
Short-term $33.9m $31.9m
Industrial $19.4 m $13.3m
Total $222.7m $199.8 m
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Investment income was $86.3 million for 2013 compared to $88.6 million
for 2012. Administrative expenditure for 2013 was $45.1 million down from
$57.8 million in 2012.

Investment income earned on reserves remains an important component of the
Fund’s finances. While this source of income can be volatile given changes in
interest rates and equity prices, it consistently exceeds administrative expenses.
As a result, total income continues to exceed total expenditure and thus reserves
continue to increase.

At the end of 2013, National Insurance Fund Investments stood at $1.580 bil-
lion up from $1.545 billion at the end of 2012. Investment returns were good
despite the economic environment. The average rate of return on investments
during 2013 was 5.0%. The equity portfolio continued to outperform expecta-
tions, returning 10.1% on both the local and United States portfolios.

Investment Mix by Asset Class, Dec.
2013
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The Fund remains heavily invested in public sector investments — Government
of The Bahamas debt, real estate finance leases, quasi-government debt. Real
estate finance leases continued to grow with the addition of the Attorney Gen-
eral’s office of $41 million. Investments held internationally grew from 7% to
10% for 2013 as efforts continue to diversify the portfolio. The amount of US$
Investments increase by 17% to a total of $158 million.

The National Insurance Board performs many operational functions, most no-
tably registration of employers and insured persons, collection of contributions,
the adjudication of benefit claims and the payment of various types of benefits.

The following tables highlight activities related to registration, claims awarded
and pensions in payment in 2012 and 2013. Additional details, with numbers
and values by Local office, can be found in the Statistical Appendix of this
Report.

Investment Mix by Location, Dec.
2013

International
10%




PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

# Contributing Employers

# Contributing Self-Employed Persons
# Active Employees (estimate)”

# Short-term Benefit Claims Awarded

# Long-term Benefit Claims Awarded

# Contributory Pensioners (at year-end)
# Assistance Pensioners (at year-end)

# Cases Approved For Prosecution

# Employees (December)

2013 2012 % CHANGE

12,612 12,598 0.1%
8,872 7,644 18.6%
141,000 144,000 -2.1%
31,970 33,282 -3.9%
3,578 3,171 12.8%
29,185 26,903 8.5%
5,064 5,077 -0.3%
474 598 -20.7%

548 526 4.2%

A figure for 2012 revised from 142,000

Registration

In 2013, employer registration increased by 917 over 2012. The Industrial
grouping Wholesale, Retail, Hotel & Restaurant made up the largest propor-
tion of the registrations with 37.7%. The next largest grouping was Public
Administration & Other services with 26.9% followed by Construction with
10.6%. There were fewer new registrations of self-employed persons for the

Type 2013 2012

Employers 3,114 2,197
Self-Employed Persons 3,408 3,748
Active Insured Persons 1,964 2,204
Inactive Persons 8,529 10,981

year than in 2012. The majority were in the Wholesale, Retail, Hotel & Res-
taurant with 34.8%, Transport, Storage & Communications with 16.0%,
Public Administration & Other services with 15.8% and Construction with
10.7%. The number of individuals applying for National Insurance Numbers
(for the first time) was lower in 2013 than in 2012.




Claims Received

Benefit Type 2013 2012

Long-term (pensions) 3,626 3,746
Short-term 34,365 36,292
Industrial 6,339 6,158
Total 44,330 46,196

Overall, there were 1,866 fewer claims received in 2013 than in 2012. Fewer
claims were received for long-term and short-term benefits while more were
received for industrial benefits.

Claims Awarded
Benefit Type 2013 2012
Long-term (pensions) 3,578 3,171
Short-term 31,970 33,282
Industrial 5,171 4,775
Total 40,719 41,228

The number of long-term benefits awarded increased in 2013 by 407 claims
compared to 2012 as the Central Benefits department aims to improve pro-
cessing times.

Pensions In Payment At Year End

Benefit/Assistance 2013 2012
Retirement 20,915 19,288
Invalidity Benefit 2,537 2,401
Survivors Benefit 4,936 4,477
Old-age Non-contributory 1,975 2,024
Invalidity Assistance 2,695 2,648
Survivors Assistance 394 405
Disablement 734 676
Death 63 61
Total 34,249 31,980

At the end of 2013, over 34,000 persons were in receipt of monthly pension
payments. The number of contributory pensions in payment continues to in-
crease while the number of non-contributory pensions continues to gradually

fall as expected.




Leadership Changes

2013 can be summed up as a year of transition, change and
new beginnings for the National Insurance Board (NIB).
During the first half of 2013, Mr. Algernon Cargill sepa-
rated from the organization as its Director. Following Mr.
Cargill’s departure, Mrs. Cecile Williams-Bethel assumed
the role of Acting Director until July when Mrs. Rowena
Bethel, former Senior Legal Advisor in the Ministry of Fi-
nance, was appointed as Director of the substantive post.

The excitement was palpable in July as NIB staffers at the Clifford Darling Complex in New Providence welcomed the new

Director back “home.”
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There were changes at the Board level with Reverend
Doctor James Moultrie, former diplomat and veteran
public administrator being appointed Chairman in Janu-
ary 2013. Eight board members were reappointed in July
for the 2013-2014 period; they were joined by three new
members namely, Dr. Glenn Beneby, Mr. Ernest Cam-
bridge and Ms. Ann Hunt.




At the executive management level, the NIB also saw
noteworthy additions during the second half of the year.
Not only did Mrs. Rowena Bethel, who previously served
as the Board’s senior in-house counsel and Legal Advisor
from 1984-2000, return to NIB as its new Director, but
also joining the organisation were Mr. Abraham Butler,
Deputy Director for Human Resources (HR) and Train-
ing and Mrs. Yvette Sands, Assistant Director, Business
Development and Policy Planning. Two notable subtrac-
tions from the leadership team came with the resignation
in July of Mr. Derek Osbourne, who provided actuarial
services for NIB over the course of 18 years, and Mrs.
Richenda King, Deputy Director, H.R.

Immediately upon appointment, the new Director set
a course for business transformation and modernisation,
i.e. doing business smarter and better, as the overriding
goals of her leadership at NIB, with the purpose of meet-
ing the reasonable expectations of NIB’s customers and
stakeholders. She committed to ensuring that transfor-
mation at the Board will be customer-driven and based
on a whole-of-organisation approach to management
with greater emphasis on collaboration (internally and

with external partners), risk management and innovation.

Operating on the basis of first principles, one of the first
orders of business implemented by the new Director was
a Handbook and Guide which articulated the comple-
mentary statutory roles, responsibilities, powers and ob-
ligations, respectively, of the Minister, the Board and the
Director based on National Insurance legislation.

In the final quarter of 2013, NIB engaged with the Inter-
national Labour Office (ILO) for the conduct of a com-
bined actuarial review of the operations of the National
Insurance Act, the National Insurance Fund, and the
National Insurance (Chronic Diseases) Prescription Drug
Fund in 2014. This combined review is scheduled to take
place in 2014.

Contributions and Compliance
Overview

The 2013 contribution income budget of $224.2 million
was exceeded by 2.5%. Contributions
collected for the year totalled $229.4
million, with the months of February
and December being the only months
that the budget was not achieved.

In 2013, 454 cases submitted for prose-
cution were completed and a total of 474
new cases were approved by the Board
for Prosecution during the year.

The business transformation and modernization thrust necessitated new iPads for NIB Execs as they

prepared to do business better and smarter in the 21st Century.
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Implementation of adjustments to
contributions for civil servants and
workers receiving gratuities

On July 1, 2013, Pensionable Civil Servants (PCS) began
contributing to National Insurance in the same manner as
other employed persons. Previously, PCS contributed less
to NIB than other employed persons. Instead of paying
9.8% on all wages up to the wage ceiling, they contribut-
ed 9.8% on the first $110 per week (shared 3.9% employ-
ee/5.9% employer) and only 5.25% on insurable wages
above $110 per week to the wage ceiling (shared (2.2%
employee/3.05% employer).

The 9.8% paid on $110 per week, secured coverage for
pensions and Short-Term Benefits up to the limit of $110
per week; the additional 5.25% provided further coverage
for Short-Term Benefits up to the same ceiling as other
employed persons. Because PCSs paid on a reduced ceil-
ing for pensions — i.e., Retirement and Invalidity Benefits
— they receive a percentage of $110 when they retired or
become invalids. In addition, their dependent surviving
spouses or parents were also limited to the $110 ceiling in
the case of Survivors Benefit.

This arrangement by which PCS paid reduced contribu-
tions came about in 1985 following the 1984 Amend-
ment to National Insurance Regulations which increased
the wage ceiling from $110 per week to $250 per week.
The disparity in wage ceilings resulted from a computa-
tion that took account of an integrated National Insur-
ance pension with those of an employer’s occupational
pension plan as provided in the National Insurance Act.



As wages in the Public Service increased over the years it
became necessary to ensure relevant income replacement
levels for pensioners. To this end, the National Insurance
Act was amended in 2010 so that, with effect from Ist
July 2013, PCSs pay contributions on the same ceiling for
both long-term (pensions) and short-term benefits.

The July 2010 amendment to the National Insurance
Act, affecting workers in the Hospitality Sector, also took
effect in July 2013. Hospitality workers whose take-home
pay consists of both base wages and formally paid gratui-
ties (i.e. gratuities that are formally paid through the em-
ployer’s payroll system) are now able to pay on a combina-
tion of both. This change resulted in higher contributions
but more importantly, higher benefits.

Workers in hotels and restaurants who are paid a base
wage by the employer and who receive gratuities that are
assessed on meals and hotel stays, previously paid Nation-
al Insurance contributions on base wages only; as a result,
when they became sick, had a baby or retired, for exam-
ple, their National Insurance benefits were relatively small
compared to their usual take home pay. With the change,
workers now contribute on their full earnings (base wage
plus gratuities that are formally paid through the employ-
er’s payroll system) up to the wage ceiling.

The amendment provided for employers to continue to
pay 5.9% on the base wage only, while employees contin-
ue to pay 3.9% on the base wage and 9.8% on the gratui-
ties portion of their take-home pay - but only the portion
that will take insurable wages up to the wage ceiling.

Claims and Payments overview

A significant milestone was reached in the Board’s mod-
ernization efforts when in June 2013 the work for the im-
plementation of a new individual (member) registration
system was completed as the first phase of an improved
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computerized system designed to enhance data capture,
pivotal for all other systems. The new registration system
is the precursor to the introduction of the new plastic reg-
istration photo identification card as well as the feature
that will allow insured persons to view their registration
and contribution information on-line. The new system is
scheduled to “go live” for contributors in early 2014.

Occupational Health & Safety Unit
(OHSU) and Prescription Drug Plan

During the year, OHSU expanded local MRI services
through a new partnership with Open MRI of Nassau
and Integra MRI Services.

Additionally, the Board realised:

*  the addition of a series of new physicians and health-
care facilities to its network of providers, who offer
very specialized medical care.

*  an increase in the complement of nurse case manag-
ers by two with one of these new nurses specifically
assigned to the Freeport Local Office.

*  improved turn-around times for provider payments,
through the hiring of two claims adjudicators.

*  the engagement of two new pharmacists for the Na-
tional Prescription Drug Plan.

Appeals

The Appeals Tribunal met six times during the year and
heard a total of 25 cases. In addition, 925 late claim cases
were reviewed and considered by the Late Claims Com-
mittee.

Administration & Business
Support Services

Human Resources - No incidences of industrial unrest oc-
curred in 2013, due largely to good faith engagements by
management with both the Union of Public Officers and
the Public Managers Union.

A Job Evaluation Workshop was successfully conducted
for union representatives and line managers of the Board
which outlined the procedure for determining the relative
worth of a job.

In addition, a Job Description Project commenced to
update and to ensure that all role specifications consist
of role definition, core functions, minimum training and
experience, necessary special requirement and suggested
measurements; a Performance Management System with
the objective of introducing a Ten (10) Point Performance
Plan for every employee of The Board; an HR policy re-
view exercise with union representatives to ensure policies
and procedures are current and in line with best practices;
and a major recruiting and selection exercise to engage
twenty-five(25) new Inspectors to improve the rate of
compliance and collection of contributions.

A Human Resources Policy Review Committee was
formed in October, 2013 to review and amend the Staff
Handbook which includes Personnel Policies, Guidelines
and Practices of the Board.

Buildings Division - The Buildings Department was suc-
cessful in obtaining all relevant permits, approvals and
certificates in full conformance with governmental and
regulatory protocols for the premises which currently
houses the Office of the Attorney General.

Additional works undertaken/completed during the year,
included:



e Electrical upgrade in the Information Technology

Department;

¢ Repairs to the roof at Wulff Road Local Office and at
Claughton House;

*  Renovations and repairs to several Family Island fa-
cilities

Corporate

Finance, Audit & Investments

The 2012 year-end financial statements were completed
and approved by the Board of Directors in June 2013.
The completion of the annual report and submission of
the same to the Minister was also accomplished before the
June 30, 2013 statutory deadline.
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The development of an Internal Audit Policies and Pro-
cedures Manual was completed in September 2013. The
Audit Department was also strengthened with the hiring
of an experienced Senior Fraud Officer to assist with the
investigation of all suspected fraud matters.

During 2013, in keeping with corporate objectives, the
National Insurance Fund expanded by US$ 22.5 million
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through US dollar and international investments. Fur-
ther, diversification of the National Insurance Fund was
also realized in the amount of $6.5 million through an
acquisition of Grand Bahama Power Company Preference
Shares for $3 million; and a Family Guardian Limited
Long Term Deposit of $3.5 million.

It is noted that the Fund’s overall performance improved
from 5.00% in 2012 to 5.02% in 2013 due to the perfor-
mance of its US investments.

Actuarial Review

The 9th Actuarial Review of the National Insurance
Fund, which reported on the period 2007 to 2011, was
completed in July 2013 and tabled in the House of As-
sembly on October 2 by Minister the Honourable D.
Shane Gibson. In accordance with section 48 (1) of the
National Insurance Act, the Review gave an assessment of
existing contribution and benefit rules and parameters,
and the Fund’s investments; provided 60-year projections
of the Fund’s income, expenditure and reserves; and made

L INSURANCE FUND
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recommendations for design and administrative chang-
es that could improve long-term financial sustainability
while maintaining benefit adequacy.

The Report was prepared by Consultant Actuary Derek
Osborne.

Business Development &
Policy Planning

A new department was created in October 2013, with the
engagement of the new Assistant Director for Business
Development and Policy Planning, Mrs. Yvette Sands.
Activities in this area centred on the following key foci:

1) Strategic Planning
The development of a strategic plan for the triennium
2014 — 2016 predicated on setting targeted objectives
which address the core mandate of NIB articulated in
the three key statutory pillars of contribution maximi-
zation, benefits and assistance payments and efficient
and effective administration and operations.

2) Process Mapping

An initiative was begun to formulate process flow
charts for the various departments at the Board with
the aim of charting the entire system in effect at the
Board and to ultimately identify points of improve-
ment to yield efficiencies at every level. Initial steps
were also made to standardize the format of all existing
policies and procedures in force at the Board. This ex-
ercise is being supplemented further, through a process
of documenting and introducing written policies/pro-
cedures where none currently exist or where those in
existence require updating.

3) Monitoring and Feedback tools
Monitoring tools and feedback mechanisms for both
internal and external customers are planned for devel-
opment and implementation in 2014.



Public Relations

In 2014, NIB will reach its 40th year milestone. To com-
memorate this event preparations commenced in 2013
for an enhanced public awareness/education campaign
that will not only involve a series of media features cover-
ing the history and development of National Insurance in
The Bahamas, but will also introduce, in a more transpar-
ent way the operations of the National Insurance Board,
its Board members and staff.

&‘:- = 7 —
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Leaders Conference 2013

Customer Relations

Plans began in 2013 to eventually introduce a full-
fledged, autonomous, customer service center and one-
stop shop for NIB which will operate from one single in-
tegrated location, covering all customer facing functions
provided by the Board, via multi-channel delivery modes.
It is proposed that an enhanced IT infrastructure and a
separate location will enable NIB to more efficiently serve
the needs and demands of its external clientele, through
an effective separation of front and back-office functions.

International Affiliations

In July, at the 27th Meeting of the Inter-American Con-
ference on Social Security (CISS), held in San Salvador,
El Salvador, the NIB, represented by Senior Deputy Di-
rector Cecile Williams-Bethel, was elected to fill the post
of First Vice President of the American Commission on
Organization and Administrative Systems (CAOSA).

In November, at the Doha World Social Security Forum,
in Qatar, Director Rowena Bethel was appointed a Vice
Chairman of the International Social Security Associa-
tion’s Technical Commission on Employment Policies
and Unemployment Insurance.

KAV Asamblea Geneal de la €155
Cecile Williams-Bethel at CAOSA
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT

To the National Insurance Board

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the National Insurance Fund and its subsidiary, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the National Insurance Act and the National Insurance (Financial and Accounting)
Regulations, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Direct Telaphone: [242] 322-8580M )

Direct Facsimia: [242] 328-7524 1 Emad pkibah@baleingl b
PKF | 44 Elzabeth Avesue | Pannell Housa | P.O. Box N-8338
Nassau | Mew Providence | Bahamas

PﬁBdTmu'namamhrﬂmdmi PKF Infemational Limited retwork of legally indapandent firms and doss not accept any resporsibility or labiity for the actions or inactions on the part of any ofher
lindbwid Lzl fiem o inmes.
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Chartered Accountants
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the National Insurance Fund
and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and with the requirements of the National Insurance Act and the National Insurance (Financial and

Accounting) Regulations.
Chartered Accountants /
Nassau, Bahamas

June 11, 2014
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The MNational Insurance Fund
i Established under the laws of the Commonwealth of The Bahanas)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Posilion
As of December 31, 2003
(Expressed in Thowsanmds of Bahamian dollars)
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Bank ol The Bahanas Linuted bonds Ty 13,508
Clitton Hentage Authory bods T T 700
Tavtine Acveenican Investmend Bank (Babanmes ) Tad, boasls k) N =T 3,208
Livams 1o Bahimos Covemment enbilies iy ML Is3 ALEE
Longe-term deposil EERRTH £, 55% ERLHY
Fhiqlt_"-e' Aty baonds Tinh 2RI > R
Fidelny Bank (Bahaows ) Laimited notes Tl 2 B3R 2 HIK
The College ol The Bahanus redecnmble term notes Tipa 2,30 2584
Puble: Hospial Authory Bonds FLLT 10,077
Mol mwveshiment m hnance leases = |.1f_."__.".-'.-' {.:"_:-_”R‘\'
Investonent progeny ! 5,120k 5. 1200
Investments in assockles 1 A 202 ] _UEY
Povtaal i mvvees torme ot 1. 580 20100 1.544.625

The accompanying notes are anontegral part of these consolidated Dmancial statements,
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The National Insurance Fund
(Established under the laws of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)
Notes 2013 2012
5 b1
ASSETS (Continued)
Computer software I 6,489 4,617
Property, plant and equipment 12 93,710 RO,546
Construction in progress = finance leases 13 - 53,610 T8.688
TOTALASSETS 1,771,037 1,731,395
LIABILITIES
Acecounts payable and accrued expenses 14 7,143 7.134
S1all pension fund 15 73,605 67,193
Accrued benefits payable _ 3,669 = 4,100
TOTAL LIABILITIES 84,417 THA2T
RES ERVES
Short-term benefits 30 46,805 30,909
Pensions 30 1,427,202 1,399,034
Industrial benefits 30 112,496 112,530
M edical benefits. 30 78,227 86,977
[Disablement and death benefits 30 21,314 22.942
Fidelity bond 16 & 30 576 576
TOTAL RES ERVES 1,686,620 1,652,968
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND RES FRVES 1,771,037 1,731,395

Assets and liabilities of the Medical Benefits Branch are separately disclosed in the notes accompanying these consolidated financial statements.
APPROVED BY THE NATIONAL INSURANCE BOARD AND SIGNED ON ITS BEHALF BY:

e 1 ofie K o Bt
— T

-C@jgman' Director

CE_ G'\-LQ June 11,2014

Financial Controller Date

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The National Insurance Fund

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

MNoles 2013 2012
IMNCOMNE
Contribations
Erployers 137,354 1235491
[rvs urcd persons B0 T4 434
Self-cnployed persons 5,600 5183
Wolun larily nsured 8 |
20 Ol ¥ 513
Felund of contributions (5345) [ty
Total net contributions 229569 203,044
[ncome romimvesiments 17 24770 21524
Incone from propety 18 2475 1,544
Share of profitsf(lasses ) ol associates 10 (574 511
Cher meone: 4 2585

TOYTAL INCOME

FXPENDITURE
Benefits expenditure

Sla 115

2490105

Short-term A3 m4 31,01
Pensions 165 35() 154,561
[l sl 15036 BuUg
[Msabkement and death 4. 485 4414
Total benefits expendiiore 222 689 1949 K805

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated mancial statements.
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
{Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
{Continued b

MNotes 2013 2012
5 5
Administrative expenditure
Stall salanes | allowances and benelis 22 A2 HEY 45 0
Expenses ol the Boand of Directors 22 14
Aot sl 544 350
Depreciation 12 202 2493
Other expenses 21 9351 el
Total sulministrative expenditure 45067 57848
Fxpenditure of the medical henefits branch
Polvelinies
Avlmunstrative cxpendiore il 5
Depreciation 12 1.154 1474
1541 1482
Mational Prescription Drug Plan Q476 D
Total expenditure of the medical benefits branch 11.516 5446
Other
Mot mmpairmment of goodwill 111 2A63
Recovery of Impamment Provision Tils) (2H5)
Total other {285 2463
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 278.TRT 268502
IEXCESS OF IN\COME OVER EXPENDITURE 37326 23,341
Remcasurement of the delined benciit ablication (3,767 1.593
Linclammed benelis 43 176
TOTAL COMPREINENS IVE INCOMIEE 33652 25010

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these consolidated nancial stalcments.
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The National Insurance Fund

Consalidated Statement of Changes in Heserves
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

| Expressed in Thousands of Bohamian dollars)

TS T [T P, TamBoae ol Sl [ T TR Y PP I et Y [T Wastild
_-s....:,: LT Y 2y 2 2iina 2y ELL R Sl 2RE 2wz 2NEN ez DA 2o 2aRE 2z
£ % & + = & ] = ] & -3 ] 3 L
FECLR L
L EETETE L SCN, el R (RPN ] (e e R 15,320 11 LICETES 324, Ans LR RS
A R 1, AFH (L) TR, TR T4, Tat (] | LaFE Ry | BT Him a1 Haa, TP L] P
| e sy 1, L (L ras £ T RN EE FREELE ]
5T} ENIEY RN % I
T firs bimeins Iy
I saab ko iw 142 | BRF RN L LT [ LR L L L
Tasanl [R]
Cnles mroiin Iies i (L2 ) Lies LR Lio ok Aend 255
LR Y B T SR LEETE T 1M 2NN 2HA 217, 25T T VTR 2B 5EAT 2757 NS RE R TEAANT
XTSI TURL
P w110 0 o meaim Bl s
S kamess Tacame e 13720k BEETH
[LERE R o.raR
£, FIRH LR
2l 2 ABT
Laxa §oAwd
- = (RS ]
[ I ] 1EBH SHH - - - - - - 12em3z (LR
F L LE | 18 HHHK 1 F Su
Trrealeliiy baorels LREF] b 14,10 [IRCEL B
Invileliy wnemiazes HoSE HoS12 H 557
R TR T E P St e R T Tl RS ] e %01 ORI E RN
Mimvivers sl LGRS 100K LEwFY
FO 1 s
1.5 ] SEL
125 L]
lw il groayelihe
Foasimeda o Pl B d i@ mige The e dar
Trrshie e an i EREETA d EWETrS
Tacuth (7] Ly ] 1A%k
A s EERC ] (R e LES T TERTERS E R - - A AHE a.ana EEREE S
Bropmefil wogrin] vahee [RCLEA] a4 L ueane
L aprddal
rvas 4 mpse = (IR LR L 11, A L 0 B e Y R S S AR A Fofy 2R
CHlwer capars lnore [2HS 2, et [2HS) e LA
[IER RN PO B L B T R 3 O ERW T ERW_TTT] EILY eS| 1 A 2 AT 18,.3% 0 (Y L= E T EESE | = = Eaoan, T2 T LT
i '1-21.-?'{( L W D i (RN R LRIEEY L} FRE] 1M, AT SINT O (ML TEAR AR, L A2K) [ A - - AT A R |
CRAS RS SRR S R RN Y
FTEETTC T R I | ES *o e B SO B )
(4,0 Th [RCTTEY PR T FRETYEY
LRITRNTITE R EE T E L) L] 24 15
BESERYTR, Lay ur sl wweinr f B sl LR ~ Bk L AT 10H0I3H 6O (b ihE ST
RS S, ol ol A HARE iAZTI02 B R O ii3.5M  THIZ S AE  STH ST

e sccompamyving neles are an intearal pa ol these consolidated Tmsncial sttemsents,
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

e IR nnz
% %
CASH FLOWS FIRROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PFxcess ol mcone over expenditune A7 3260 23341
Addustments:
Incenme Trommyesinenis (=477 (51,524
line cviime I.l'\.lI'IIL'II'IllrL'I'l}' [(200758) TR
Share ol losses/(profns ) of associles 574 (5081
loss on disposaliswrte-oll of propeny, plant and couipment St Ay
Mot is el o S 350
Depreciation 326 3572
Mot Ingrairment of Coodwill 2403
Recovery of Tmpaimuent of Provision [2H5)
Deficit before working capital changes 145 443 (5H.B26)
wlvances Al (12
(nereasedecrease in prepaid expenses and deposins 612 [M12)
Increase inaccounts pavable and aceried expenses 1z 732
(ITecmease Vinerease n ‘-.1.-.H'|'|L'I'|\.||.r|| T 2 0eds LA R TEY
Increasce/idecrease) in acomed bencelits payvable [431) PRI
Mot cash vsed in operating activities 42434 674510
CASTH FLOWS FROM INVISTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest received — trustee and other seourilics M5TI1 e, 740
Dividends receivied 4778 4,254
Procecds from inance leases S0A00 HAU2
Incone receved Trom propery LK} | 445
Piviadends recerved oo assocmles 1,213 1,583
P'rocecds from sale of equity sceunnics 1345 11y
Procecds from United States of Amences VSS Treasary noles 11,10 4l
Procecds on nmtunty ol certdicates ol deposit RN MR AT2500
Procecds on netunty of Bahanms Covernnwnt regstened stocks 41,232 163450
Procecds Trom Covvernement of Barbaados Bonds 125

The accoimpanying noles are an mdegral parl of these consolidated Tnancial statements.
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The National Insurance Fund

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

2013 2012
5 b

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Proceeds on maturity of Bahamas Mongage Corporation bonds 45000 5. 100
Procecds on redemplion of Bank of The Balaormas Linnted bonds | 3,500 35000
Proceeds lrom loan repayments Trom Bahamas Government entities 102 136
Proceeds [rom NMassau Awpornt Development Company Linuted debt sccunties [ E374 20H0
Procecds on maturity of Latin American Investnent Bank (Bahamas ) Lid, bonds 131 -
Proceods of Colleqge of the Biahamias  notes 185
Proceeds om Consolidated Water { Babarmas ) 1ad. honds 4 1,700
Procecds [mom sale of propeiy plant and couipment 24 35
Purchase ol cguily sccurlics (43 145 (1M
Purcharse of United States of America US$ treasury notes (14072 {16.924)
Punchasc of TISS Corporate Bonds (<, T4
Flacements of certiticates ol deposil [T91.0051) (27RAKNN)
Placements of long-term deposits (35000 (24NN
Purchase ol Bahamas Government registered stocks {157
Purchase of Bahanus Maorgage Corporation bonds - {10,700
Purchase of Massan Arpon Development Company Limited debt secunties - {15000
Purchase ol prelerence shares (3 0HMDY
Acddmwonal loans to Bahamas Government enbilaes (7,2KN -
Purchase of Public Hospital Authorty Bonds [RUEELAT -
Acdditions to compuler soltware (2.372) (4.397)
Additions 10 propenty, plant and cquipment {16 4Ky {14,726
Additions o construction in progress — finance leases (13511 {15.255)
Met cash from investing activities 46,088 698524
Met increase incash and cash equivalents 3654 2343
Cush and cash equivalents, begmning ol year 11,50 EN LY
Cashoand cash equivalenis, end of vear (Note 3) 15,158 11.504

The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of these consolidated lmancial statements.
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The MNational Insurance Fund

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

1. General Information

e Natmomal Insuranee Fond (the Pandy was estabhished ander the Natonal Insuranee Act (e Act), The magor obpective of the Fund s o provade

pecuniary pavments in respect ol

fad swckness, mvalidaty, matermty . onemplovment. retremaent, death, mduestiral ingury and disablement and death from mdustal myury:
(h) medical care;

i) social assistance for insured and other persons not qualilving For such payments as of right;

() porposes conmected with and incidental o the above matiers,

Income is derived from contributions and retirn on investments. The daily operations of the Fund are governed by the Act and regulations pertaning
therete and are administered by the National Tnsuranee Board (8T The Fond Bas one wholly owned sobsadiary, Clanghton Touse imited.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Uhe principal accounting policies adopted o the preparation of the consolidated [nancial statements are set oul below. These policies have been

conststently appled tooall years presented, unless otherwise stated
{a) Basis of preparation

Ihe consolidated Tmancial statements are prepared in aceordance with International Financial Beporting Standards (IFRS) and with the
recuirements of the Act and the National Insurance (Financial and Accounting) Regulations (the Regolations), Further, the consolidated lnancial

statements are preparcd under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed m the accounting policies below,

The preparation of consoldated Tnancal statcments i conformity with IFRS requires management to exercise judgment mothe process of applying
the Fund’s accounting poheies. 1L also requires management o make estimates amd assamplions ol alfect the reported amounts of assels amd
liabalities and disclosure of contingent asscls and Labilities as of the date of the consolidated Gpancial staements and the reported amounts of
meome and expenditure during the reporting period. Actoal results could differ from those estimates. The arcas mvolving a higher degree of
pecdgment or complexiy, or arcas where assumphons and estimates are stmmhcant oo the consolidated Tmancial statements, are disclosed m Motes

2led. 2y 20h), 200 and 2(1).

Ihe consolidated Dancial statements do not take aceount ol Labilites w pay benelns i the fotore, Ao actearial valvation s perfonmned every live
wears, wilh the Latest valuation having been done as of December 31, 20000, Certam resalts of the actuanal valoation are deseribed in Note 31,
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The MNational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Contined)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies | Continued )
ta)  Basis of preparation (continued)

New and amended standards adopred by the Fund

These new and revised 1FRS presenbe oew accounting recogmbion, measurement and disclosure requirements appheable o the Fomd, When
applicable, the adoption of the new standards was made in accordance with their transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption is accounted lor as
change in accounting policy under 1AS 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, The adoption of these new and
reviscil Standards and Interpretations, as sted below Tos ooomateral oopact on the consolikated hnancal statements of the Tand or s accoontime
policies. Enhanced and additional disclosures have been made.

i MRS 7 Fincecial fnstraments Diselosures
e amended standard requires disclosures o melude imformation that will enable users of the financial statements 1o evaluate the effect
or potential ellect of neting amangements, ncluding rights ol set-ofl associated with the entiy’s recogmiced lnancial assels and
lnancinl Habilities. The amendment is elTective Tor periods commencing on or aller Tanuary [ 200 3.

. [ERS Wy Consalidated Finaneial Siatements

RS W Consofidated Fagneind Statemenis establishes the prmeples Tor the preseataton aod preparation o consolidated DBoancal
stalements when an entily controls one or more other entitics. The Standard defines the principle of contrel and establishes control as the
basis for determining which entities are consolidated in the consolidated lnancial statements. This RS will supersede 1A% 27
Crmseliclated Finaneia! Statemenis and Seporate Finanerad Statements and [10 12 Consolidation Special Purpose Foriges, TRS 100is
ellective for anmual periods beginning on or alter January 1, 2003, with carlicr application permitted.

i RS 12 Exsclesire of fnterests i (hier Endities

RS 12 Disclosure of feeresey in Other Fatities applies o entilies that have an inlerest in a subsidiary, & joint arrangement, and an
associale or an uionselidated structured entity, U benelits the vsers by identilying the prolit or loss and cash [Dows available 1o the
reporting entity amd determining the value of coment or Tuture investment in the reporting entity, TFRS 12 s elfective Tor annual periods
Fregmning on o after Janaary 1, 2003, with eacher application permitted.
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollarsy
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
iap  Basis of preparvation (continued)

iv. Amendments wo [FRS 10, TFRS 12, and [AS 27

These arnendments apply toos particelar class ol busimess that qualifics as mvesoment eotitics. The TASE uses the werm “imvestment ity Lo
refer o an entity whose business purpose is o invest Tonds solely for retorms from capital appreciation, investmen! income or both, An
mvestment entity must also evaloate the perlonmance of s imvestments on g Gair valoe basis, Such entitics conld melude private couity
L1]"_._':IIIL".'.L|.i:'III'i. veniure -;.'.L[Ji[:LI l.'l]"_._'::llli..‘.'.ll.il.lll.‘-, [:l-:]himl Tiwrads, sovercign wealth funels and othier mvestment Tands. Under TFRS 10 ool fdsised
Financial Swatements, |'l.'pul'ti|'.::: enlilics were I'L".ll..lit’l..'i:. to consolidate all investees that l]h.:}' control (e all subsidiaries). The Tnvestment
Lntitics amendments provide an exception 1o the consolidation requirements in IFES 10 and reguire investment entitics o measore particular
subsidiares at Gar value through peolit or loss, mather than consoludate theme The amendments also set ont disclosure requirements Lor
mmvestment entities. The amendments to IFRS 10, 1FRS 12, and [AS 27 are effective forannual periods beginming on or alter Jannary 1. 20035

L2 [FES 13 e Value Measuremient

IFRS 13 explains how o measure ir value Tor inancial reportmg. Iedefimes For vadee as the price that would be reocived oo sell an asset or
paiel 1o transter a liability in an orderly mansaction between market participants at the measorement date. It emphasizes that Gair value is
markel-ased, nol an enbity-specilie measurcments hience an entity "5 itention 1o hold an asset or to seile or otherwise Tl a Tababiny s not
relevan when measuring G value. It was developed o climinate inconsistencics of fair value measurements dispersed in various existing
TFR 5s. Tt also clarifics the definition of Tair value, provides a single Tramework for measuring Fair value and cohances Gair value disclosares,
RS 13 15 effective for anneal periods beginning on or atter Tapuary 1, 20012, with carlier application permitted,

Vi TAN 1 Presentation of Finarcual Staiemenis
Amendments clarifying the requirements Tor comparative inlormation including mimmum and additional comparative information regquired.
Annual improvement 2000 2001 cvele is effective for annual perinds beginning on or alter Fanuary 1, 2003, with carlier application

perimited

Pl rewised standard reguired cntities o groop iems in other comprebensive imcome as ilems which may be subsequently receveled o prolil

or loss, or those that will not The disclosure of the s effeen of these itemms showld Tillow accordingly, The revised TAS | s effective for

anmual periods beginning on after July 1, 20012,

Vil [AS 10 Property, Plant and Equipnient

AT TICHEIC TR Keh [RR e B L1 | I il.ll el '.h'ii iL'.l iU‘I (81 | j(.i[ LA I e, FARRIL LA By} LRVUTTICTIL = L Lo 8 LS i.\ L ”L'l;.' J w .l.ll el LETLISY
wmendmenms o the recognition and classification of servicing cquipment.  Anoual improvement 2009 2011 evele s effective for annual
periods beginning on or alter Janwary 1, 200 3, with carlicr application permitied.
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The National Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

r- Summary of
ia)  Basis

viil.

1.
MNewe s
I'he Fu

Fruinned o
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
if preparation (continued )

Amendments o TAS 27 Consofidated and Separare Firaneial Statements

The amendments e IAS 27 are a result of the completion and issuance of a new standard on consolidation. [VRS W Censolidared Finanicial
Staterments. Therefore, TAS 27 will now be titled “Separate Financial Statcments”™ and contain requurements relating only to separate financial
stitterments, The amended standard 15 applicable woanmual perods begimmimg on or alter Jaooary 1 2003 with carber appheaton permitiad,

Amendments o [TAS 28 hrvesonent in Associaies

The amendments o [AS 28 are a result of the completion and issvance of a new standard on joint arrangements, [FRS 11 Jodnr
Arreprgements. As a result, TAS 28 will now be titled “Tnvestment in Associates and Joint Ventores™ and incorporate requirements for joint
ventures. The amended standard 15 applicable 1w annoal periods beginnimg on or alter January 1, 2013, with carhier application permtied,

sanieliarals, conrencloenty congd irederpeetafions issneedd Sat neod ved effeciive and et eaedy adopled by the Frond

e will adopt the following standards and mterpretations enumerated below when they become ellectve. Except as otherwise indicated, the
loes not expect the adoption of these new and amended TPRSs 10 have g material smpact on the Fond's consolidated Dnancial statements,

TERS 9 Finaneiad bisreamaenis

IFRS 9 Fingnetal Instroerents ssoed m November 2000 and amended in October 2000 addresses the classilicatiom, measurement and
recognition ol lnameial assets and lnancial liahiliges. The stndard requires all recognised linancial assets that are within the scope of 1AL
39 Figrcind Tnstramenis: Recognition and Measurement, o be subsequently measured s amorived cost or Boe valoue, Specilically, dels
mvestiments that are held within a business model whose abjective 1s o colleet the contractual cash Nows, and that have contractual cash
(ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are gencrally measured al amoetazcd cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods, All other debt investments and cquity invesiments are measured a0 their Gor values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. TFRS 9 4s elfective Tor annual periods beginning on or alter Janwary 1, 2005, with carlier application permitted. The
Fund has not vet asscssed the fll impact of adopting [TFRS 9 bat intends o adopt TFRS 9 no later than the fiscal period beginning on or afier

Tomuary 1. 200 5.



The Mational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (Continued)

i1 Basis of preparation (continued )

i,

v,
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RS T (Amendedy Convedidated Firancial Sttemenss, 1FRY 12 (Amended), Discloswee of Intevest o Other Entities, A5 27
{Amended), Separate Finaneiol Stalements

The amendments require a parent company thatl s an mvesiment enlity o measure s mvestments in paricalar subsadaries st Gor valoe
through profil or loss instead of consolidating them, The new disclosore requirements pertaining o investment entitics were added o
IFRS 12 amd 1AS 270 The amendments are effective Tor annual penods begimming on o afier January 120040 BEacher application s
permitted.

[AS 19 Emploves Benefics

Wil respect e the delined benelits plans employee contributions the amendments clanbics the requirements that relate o how
comtrabutions rom cooployees o teed partios that are lmked woservice should be atteabuted wopenods of seevice. In additaon, o permits
a practical expedicnt il the amauant ol the contributions s independent of the nember of vears ol serviee, in that contributions, can, bt
arc ol reguired, o be recopniecd as oo reduction an the service cost e the period o which the related service s rendered. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or aller Janoary 1, 2004, Barlier application 1s permitted,

[AS 32 Financial fnseruiients: Freseniation

The apphication sunlanee o TAS 32 has been amemded o clanly some of the regquimements for of fsettmyg Fimancial Assets amd Financral
leabilites, | he Revised standard s cllective Tor annual |!~.'I"ll.l-'.|:~ begmning on or alter January 1, 2014,

[AS 36 Impalirmient of Assers

There has Been amendment 1o LAS 36 onthe recoverable amount disclosures Tor non-fnancial assets, The amend ment remsoyes cerlain
disclosures ol the recoverable amount of cash generating unns which bad been mcluded m [AS 36 a5 a result of IFRS 13 being issued
The amendiment s cflectve tor anmual periods begimunng on o alter Janoary 1, 2014,

Annnal fmprovements Process

The process 1= o enhance the qualiny of Standards, by amendmg cxastmg TFRSs w0 clamily gdanee and wordimg, or o comeet lor

relatively minor unintended oversights, conflicts and consequences. [ssues included i the eveles ane as follows:

Cwgle; 2000 - 2012
RS 13 - Shorcterm recevables and pavables.

FOLAS LS Revaluation method, proportionaste restatement of accamulated depreciation,
1A% 24 - Koy managerment personnel.



The Mational Insurance Fund

Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
i Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(a)  Basis of preparation (continoed )

vi. Annugd Tmprovemens Process (Continned )

Cycle: 2000 - 2003
IFRS 1 - Meaning of ¢lfective [FRSs
FOIERS 13 - Scope ol paragraph 32 (portlolo exception)

The amendments for both L'_'g.i:luk are cllective for anmual ;H_'riudk fk‘;iﬂllil!;_' on o alter .[ll]}' 1. j”l-l, with carlicr u|:]ﬂiculi-:1ll ]‘.u_'l'l:lillc:l.
ih)  Consaolidation
Suebwiclicories

Subsicliarics arc all entitics over which the Fund has the power 1o govern the Tnancial and operating policies, generally  accompanying a
shareholdme of more than one half of the voung rghts, Subsidiares are ully conseldated Crom the date on which control s translerred w the Fond,
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balanees, eome and expenses and unrealised gaims on ransactons between the Tund and s subsadiary are eliminated
Unrealised losses are also climinated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset trnslerred.  Accounting policics of

subsichiaries are chanzed where necessary o ensure consistency with the pohicies adopted by the Fumd,
Assercidcires

Assoctates ane all coties over winch the Fond has sigomlicant mlloenee but ool control, gencrally accompanying a sharcholdms of between 200
and S0% of the voling rights. Investments in asseciates are aceounted Tor using the cguity method ol sccounting and are initially recognised at eost.
The investment in associates includes soodwill identified on acqguisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses,

The Fupd™s share of s associates” post-acguisition profits or losses 1s recognised in the comsolidated stilement of comprelensive income, and s
share ol post-acguisiion movements in reserves 15 recoznised i oreserves,  The comulative post-acouisition movements are adjosted agamst the
carrying amount of the mvestment. When the Fund’s share of Tosses inan asseciate equals or exeeeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecwred receivables, the Tund does not recogmise further losses, unless i has inewrred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behall ol the associte,
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The Mational Insurance Fund
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i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(b1 Consolidation (continued )

Asseciares (Connmued )

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Fund and us associaes are clinnated o the extent of the Fund's interest in the associales, Unrealised
lossses are also eliminated. unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset ransferred. Accounting policies of associales ane
+:|3.'|11;_"cr.l where CCCRsAry Lo ensire n:.'nt'lxi\-ll:lll_'}- with the |!|u]in..'i+:h .ltlu|31|:d Ir'_',' the Fund.

ic)  PForeign currency translation

The consolikted Doancial statements are presented i Babamsan dollars, wloch s the Tunctonal aod presentation currency of the Paml. Poreign
curreney fransactions are translated into the fonctional curreney using the exchange rates prevailing an the dates of the ransactions. Forcizn
1:RL']1:L:1t_'|: ;:uillh and losses I'-::-\Il]Iint_r From the settlement of such ransactions and Trom the ranslation of monelary asscls and labilines a -:x-;.'hal.ﬂ;_"w..'

rates provinling as of the reporting date are recognised i the consolidated staement of comprehensive mcome,
[y Cash and cosh equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash (ows, cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly Do mvestments with ongimal comtractual maturities of three months or less and, 15 apphicalde, Bank overdralis,

(e} Tinancial assets

The Fund elassilies its Onancial assets into the Tollowing catesories: Dancial assets st Gar valoe through profin or loss: held-to-matucity: and loans
and receivables. Management determines the classilication of lnancial assets al initial recognition, based on the purpose Tor which they are
acquired, and re-cvaluates the classification at cach statement of financial position date,

Financial assets at Gadr value throwgh profit or loss are those that are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair valoe basis, These Onancial
assets are mtended w0 be held Tor an indeline pertod of tme and may be sold mnoresponse o needs Tor lguidiny or changes inoinlerest rales,
exchange rates or market prices. Held o maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Fund has the |!H.‘1i|.i.‘-'1.' inlention and :Lhi|it}' tov holed 1o r'IIiJ|II.fi|_‘_-'. [ons and receivables are non-derivative linancial assets with
lixed or determanable pavaents that are not isded inoan active market
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(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Comtinued )

2. Summuary of Significant Accounting Policies [Continued )
feh Financial assets | Continoed

Eegular way purchases and sales ol Tinancial assets are recognised on the trade date, sohoch s the date that the Fand commats w purchase or sell the
assel Financial assets are imitially recognised at Gar value plus transaction costs, except for financial assets at fair valoe through profic or loss
where trunsaction costs are expenscd as mewrred, Financial assets are derecosmsed when the nghts o recerve cash (ows Froan them have expired
or when they have been tmmsferred amed thae Pomd has also tansterred substmteally all resks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets i Gor valoe through profit or loss are subsequently carricd st Gair value based on guoted prices Tor investments traded inactive
markets: or valmstion wechniques, including recent arm’s length rnsactions, discounted cash Oow analysis and other valuation wehnigues
commonly used by market participants, for investments not traded inactive markets. Gains and losses arising rom sales and changes in Lair value
ol these financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income inthe period in which they arise.

Held-to-maturity imvestments and Joans and receivables are carmied at amortised cost using the ellectve interest method, less any provision lor
HuprAirnenl

(N Sale and repurchase agreements

sSecurilics sold subject 1w repurchase agrecments {repos) are reclassified in the consolidaled Dmanctal statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom o sell or re-pledge the collateral; the counterparty ltability is included in loans pavable when
applicable. Securities purchased under agrecments W resell freverse repos) are recorded as Toans e the applivable coumterparty. The difference
betwazen the sale and repurchase price s treated as mierest amed acorued over the hile of the agreements using the effective mmterest method,

Securtbies lent are retamed in the consohidaied Dhnancial staiements,
£l Impairment of financial asscts

The Fund assesses al cach statement of nancial position date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of Onancial asscts
s imparred, A Dnancial asscl or aceroup ol Doancial assets s mpared and impamment Tosses are mourmed 1F, and onlyal thene 15 objective evidenee
ol mpanrment as a result ol one or more events that occwrred alter the imitial recosmiton of the asset (a loss event) and tat Toss event (or events)
Feas anmmpact on the estimated Tuture cash ows of the hnancial asset or growp of linancial assets that can be rebably estumated, The crtera that the

Fund wses to deterimne that there s abjective evidence of an inpaiement loss include:

1 Fimancial difficulty indicators:

i, Breach of contract, such as default or delinguency in imerest or prmcipal payments;
i rawnd:

v, Bankruptey or other loancial reorganization; and

v.  Observable data indican ng that there is a measurable decrease inthe estimated Tuture cash lows
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i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
iContinued )

2. Summuary of Signilicant Accounting Policies { Condinued
izl Impairment of financial assets (Continued )

IF there is objective evidenee that an bmpaiciment loss on beld-o-maturity investiments or Loans and receivables as been mearred, the amount of the
Toss 15 mcasured as the dilference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash Tows (excluding Dure eredi
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the Mnancial asset’s onginal effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset s reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss s recognised inthe consolidated statement of comprehensive meome. 10 in a
.\I1|'lm.‘n:lllt‘.n1 ]‘JL:riL'rd the amonnt of the iJ'l'lE'r:liJ'l'l'n"J'l[ loss decreases and the deercase can be related :1|'r.icr.‘1i'l.'l:|:_-.- o an event accurr iJ'l;_' after the
mmpairment was recogmsed the previoosly recogmised mmparment Toss s reversed by adpostimeg the allowance account. The amount of the reversal
is recoanised in the consolidmed statement of comprehensive income. When a linancial assel s uncallectible, it is written ol T against the allowance
acconnt, Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recoonised directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive icome.

The amount of loss on linancial asscts at fair value through profin or loss is measured as the diffcrence between the assct’s carrying amonm and the
present value of estmated uture cash Dows discounted an the current market rate of iterest Tor a similar nancial asset,

(hy  Investmenl properiy

Property that 15 held Tor long-term rental yields, capatal appreciation, or both, and is not proincipally occupied by the Tund. s elassilied as mvestment
property. Investment property comprises rechold land and oflice buildings.

[nvestment property is measured imitially s cost ineloding related transaction costs. Subscoguently, investment property is carried at fair valoe, Far
vilue 15 bascd on valuation methods such as discounted cash Dow []I'l.l'_'i\..'L'ﬁl'lllH and ]!:'i.l_‘l.‘.\- ohserved in recent transactions iﬂ'.'n]\'i]'l;_" simmilar
propertics,  Formal valuations are oblaned, from mdependent appragsers who hold recogmised and relevanm prolessional qualifications and have
recent experienee in the category of investment property being valued, at least every three years. The Lair value of investment property rellects,
among other things, rental income from carrent leases and assumptions abowt rental mcome from futnre leases in the hght of current market
concitions,  The e vadue also rellects, ona simalar basts. any cash outlTows that could be expected mrespeet ol the property.

Subscquent expenditure 1s charzed 1o he assel’s carrying amount only when it is probable that lutere ecconomic benelils associated with the item
will Now 1o the Fund and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, Al repairs and maimenance costs are charged 1o the consolidated statemem
of comprehensive income durimg the Imancial penod i which they are mevrred. When pant of an investment property as replaced, the carrymg
amount ol the J'n..'|]|:u_'1_'d prart 1% l:l.l_'t’l..'l_‘l.r::_"'1li.\1:.'li.
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i Continued)
2. Summuary of Significant Accounting Policies {Conlinued )
ihy  Investment properly (continued )

The fair value of investment properly docs not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance the property and does not reflect the
related future benefits from this future expenditure other than those a rational market participant would take into account when determining the fair
value of the property,

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  Investment property is derecognised either when it
has been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no Tuture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings principally comprise buildings that are significantly ocoupied by the Fund or occupied by medical clinics operated by the
Ciovernment of the Commaonwealth of The Bahamas (The Bahamas Government), Property, plam and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation, except land which is not depreciated. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriale, when it is probable that fulure cconomic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Fund and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance and costs of leaschold improvements are charged 1o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Pepreciation is caleulated using the straight-line basis 1o allocate costs (net of residual values) over estimated uselul lives as Tollows:

Buildings 40 vears
OMTice Turniture and equipment 5 — 10 years
Computer hardware 3
Motor vehicles 4 years
Medical equipment 10 vears

3 — 5 years
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(Continued )

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Polictes (Continued)

(il Property., plant and equipment (continued)

Assers' residual values and wselul lives are reviewed, and au.j_i usliod if;lppl'opl'l.;l[:, at cach statcment ol Doneal |nhiliu:: date, An asscl's x::;ll':j.'illg
amount 15 wreitlen down immediately s recoverable amount 1 the assel s carrying amount 15 greater than s estimated recoverable amount, The
recoverable amoum 15 the higher of the asset's fair value less costs 1o sell and its value in use

Cuanns and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.,

jh Computer software

Computer soltware comprises soltwane packages and other costs associated with implementing the soltwane and ensuring that 10 s Tully operational,
The asset 1s stated ot hostorieal cost Less amortsaton, caloulated wsing the straoght-line basis over the estimated vselul hie of three years, except lor

the newly implemented Rollout 1ol the pew insurance admeonstration system which s amortised over Gilteen years, The estimated vselul Die and

anmorlization method are reviewed it the end of cach anmual reporting periosd, with the cffeet of any changes o estimate bene aceounted for on a
prospective basis

A antanzible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no fotere ceonomic benelits are expected Trom wse or disposal. Gains or losses arising
[rom derceommtion of anmtangzible assel are measored as the dillerence between the nel disposal procecds and the carrying amount ol the assel and
are recopnized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(K} Leases

The Frnd 15 Jessee

Leases in which a signilicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, are classificd as operating leases. Payments
miasde under operating leases are charged 1w the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Fhie Frod i3 lessor

Finance leascs

For assets leascd oo under finance leases, the presemt value of the lease payments s recognised as net investment in finance leases in the
consolidated statement of Dnancial position. The dilference between the total gross lease payments and the present value of the lease payments 1s

recogmised as unearned Dnoanee meome,  Lease income 15 recogmsed over the term of the leases using the net mvestment method, which rellects o
constant periedic rate of return,
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(Continued)

F3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
ik} Leases (continued)
The Fund is lessor (continued)

Cosls in relation to construction of assets intended to be leased onl under lnance leases are recognised as construction in progress — [inance leases
i the consolulated statement of lnancial position, Costs e lode the expenditores that are directly atmibutable o the construction ol the assets, In
addinon, the Fund recosmses miterest meome, using the elfective ierest method, on the outstanding balanee dunng the construction phase and
includes this i the carrying amounl. Upon completion ol an assel, the amounts are transferred o net investment in inance leases.

COlperating leases

Assets Leased oul under operating leases e included o investment properly or property, plant and cquipment i the consolidated statement of
linaneial position. Rental income is recoenised in the consolidated statement ol comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period ol

the leasc.
(n Employee bencfits

NI provides a contributory defined benefint pension plan (the pension plany for all of s non contracmal, foll nme employees. A defined beneln
pension plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension beneli that an employee will receive on retirement, usually as a functon of one or
more [actors such as age, years ol serviee and compensation. The Fund is obligated o Tund the pension plan after allowing for employees’
contributions,

I the year 2002, the Fund carly adopted the amendments to TAS 19 Empldevee Berefits as revised in June 2001, The Pund bas applicd 1AS 19 as
revised retrospectively and imoaccordance wath TAS 8 Acconnting Policies, Changes v Acocwneing Estimeates and Ervors. These transitional
provisions do not have an impact on future periods.

I'he most significant change relates o the accounting for changes in the defined benelit obligation and plan asscts. The amendments require the
recognition ol changes in defined benelit obligations and in Gabr value of plan assets when they oceor, and henee eliminate the “corridor approach”
permitted under the previous version of [TAS 19 and accelerate the recogmton of unvested past service costs, All actoarial sains and losses o be
recognised immediately through other comprehensive income in order Tor the nel pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial posibon to reflect the full value of the plan deficir or surplos. Furthermaore, the interest cost and expected returm on plan asscts are
replaced wath the net mierest amount which s calenlated by applying the discount rate o the net delimed beneln halahiy or asser
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(Continued)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies | Continued )

(m)  Revenue recognition

Contributions are accounted [or on a cash basis. Management has determined that doe o the significant uncertainty of uming and amounts of
contributions by participants, the revenue recognition crteria are not salished unil payments have been received.

Interest income for all mstruments measured ol amortised cost is 11.‘:.'ug_‘|3i.\|_‘d in the consolidated statement of L'l.'l-l'I'IE'lfL']l-i_'I:I'ii.'tL' TILCTITR lI.\i:'l;_' the
ellectve miterest method, The ellectve mmterest mathod 15 o method of caleulating the amortsed cost ol o lnancaal asset amd allocating the imterest
moeorme over the relevant period, The eflfective mterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated Toture cash receipts through the expected hile
of the linancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period o the net carying amount of the Brancial instrument. When calealating the
elfective imterest rate, Uwe Pund estimates cash Hows consdenmg all contractual terms of the lnancial mstrament ot does not consider Tuture credil
lossses, The caleulaton ineludes all fees and commissions paid or received between parties 1o the contract that are an integral part al the eflective
mierest rale, transaction costs amd all other |:'II'L':IT'IilH'II\- ar disconunts,

Dividend imcome is recognised when the Fund's right o reeeive paviment has been established. Rental income is recopgnised as diselosed in Note
2ik). Other income amounts are recoonised using the accrual basis of accounting.

(nj Ixpense recognition

Benelts expenditure 15 recogmsed when the Fund's obliganen 1w make pavment has been established, generally upon approval of a cliaim
submitted. Other expenses are recognised using the acerual basis of accounting.

o) Unclaimed benefits
In accordance with scction 15 of the National Insarance (Bencfit and Assistance) Regulations, unclaimed benefits arc legally extingumished after a

periodd o cighteen months. Management has implemented o pohiey ol reversing benetit habilines, and crediimg them direet]ly o reserves, alier a
preriodd ol Dwor vears o provide Tor an extended period that may be eranted 1o recipicnts of benelis based on the underlving circumstances.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
ipt  Apportionment of income, and administrative and other expenditure

Secttons 18 and 19 of the Regulations provide the following:

1o Income Trom contributions shall be distributed amoeng the benelit branches in the following proportions:

A el iz

Short-term bene s rescrve 2500 A0V
s mims s v T AN 070
Indusiral bene s eserve T SO 750y
Bl il boenciils nesore [ [
(TN R LIV VRS

1. Income from investments shall be allocated wo the benelis branch oo which the investments relae.

. All ether meome, which cannot be dentlied wath any specihe branch. shall be distnbuted among the lour benehin branches inoequal parts,

iv. Aadministrative cxpenditure of the medical benelits branch shall be asceribed o that branch ancd all other administzative expenditure shall be
distributed among the other three branches so that e proportion allocated to a partcular bramech shall be equal o the proportion wiich the
sumt ol the contribution ineome and bee it expenditure shown in the income and expenditure account of that branch Bears we the swm ol the
contribution income and bencefits expenditure of the Fund as a whole

For the vears ended December 31, 2003 and 2001 2, the resulting proporiion of administrative expenditore ascribed to the three benelil branches 1s as
- =

follows:
2013 o012
Short -tenn benehits reserve g B L M5
Pemsons meserve T1.et% T2320
[ndustnal benetiis reserve B 13% TR
10000 < 100D

v Al ether expenditore, which is not atiribuotable woany specilic branch, shall e distributed ameng the Tour benelin branches in egual parts.
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(Continued )

2. Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Conlinued)

{rp) Related parties
Related partics include s subsidiary; associates, ministrics and corporations of The Balamas Government: agencies and entitics controlled by The
Bahamas Crovernment or mowhich The Babamas Government has a sigmificant oswnership imerest; key mamagement personnel; close Tamily
members of key management personnel: and enttes owned or controlled by Key management personnel. Key mamagement personnel include those
harving the authority and responsibility [or planning., directing and controlling the activities of the Fund.
Balances and transactions with related parties are disclosed i Note 28 o these consolidated hnancial statements.

irl  Taxation
The Fund ts established ander the Liws of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas and is not hthjL'l:l Ly TILC 0TS, L'il["i'il.l. 5.'}15”\ or other corporale Lixcs.
The Fund's operations do not subject it to taxation in any other jurisdiction, except for withholding taxes imposced by certain counires on
imvestment ineorme and capital gains for imvestments domiciled i those countries.

(5] Events Alter The Reporting Period
The Fund wdentilies subscguent events as events that oceurred alter the reporting period bat before the dite when the Dnamcnal statements were
authoriecd Tor issuc, Any subscouent events 1hal provide additional information about the Fund’s position at the reporting perod, adjosting events,
are rellected i the Nmancial statements, while subsequent events that do not requare adjustments, non-sdpesting events, are disclosed 1 the notes 1o
fimaneial statements when material

(th Corresponding figures

Where necessary, corresponding fienres are adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current vear
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(Continued)

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

lor the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash on handd
Caszh at banks — cumenl account
Cash at hrokers

Cash at the Central Bank of The Bahanas

Cash atthe Cemral Bank of The Bahamas does not carn interest. The remaining cash and cash equivalems did not cam imerest during 20003 (201

cllective mterest ol Mil 956,
4. Receivables and Advances

Receivables and advances comprise;

Fimance lease receivables

Rent reccivabhbe

Other receivable — The Bahamas Government
Advances to staft

Prosviswon For doabtiul accounts
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The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
December 31, 20003

(Expressed in Thousands of Bauham
(Contimaed )

i dollars)

F Investroents at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
The Fund ranks its investments based on the hierarchy ol valuation technigques reguired by ITFRS, which is determined based on whether the inputs o those
valuation technigques are observable or unohservable,  Observable inputs rellect market data obtained from independent sources: unohservable inputs

reflect the Fund’s markel assumptions. These two types ol inputs lead o the fllowing Gair value hicrarchy:

Level T Quoted prices (unadjuswed ) in active markets for identical assets or Dabaliies. This level imeludes cquity securitics and debt instruments Lsted on
erchanges,

Leve! 2 Tnputs other than quoted prices ineluded within Devel 1 that are observable for the asset or liabiline, cither directly (that s, as prices) or indirectly
(et 15, derived [rom prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level includes equity securitics and debt
instruments with significant unobservable components.

I'his hicrarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Fund considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations
where passible.

Investments at Gabr value through profit or loss held by the Fund comprise:

Linits
2013 2012 2013 212
f}.r'{.r.".lr(.-."_'.' Shicrexs £ Murieerd Fiasds
Tawel 1 BS
JRALELN) | LR Bahamas Woas e Tanuted 4 i
31,5000 Bank of Baborees Lot 31,4490
1,114 583 [ Commeonwealth Bank 1Tid. 702 7.334
2T S 2957 M) Commrwomwealthe Brewery Daomted il 515 265,767
A7 T 474, T Comsorlidated Waler Co. [d. 1,33 E R
23 320 23320 Fovmw aned Corposmition Tomite:d 122 10
213472 213,472 Fmanee Corproration ol Babamas Tanuted 2,241 1,227
O A LY L | Firstl aribbean Intemational Bank (Bahamas ) 1 imited 2,161 2079
375,153 A75.153 Trecport Cnl Toldmes Company Tid. 2,250 2,153
155 v 155, Ty 1T Ultilities T anvited THa 104300
i 327 08,327 15 dohnson & Company Paited Fakd (]
P 42 193
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( Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)
5. Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued)
Lnils
2013 2012
(hedinary Shares ! Mutwal Funds (continued )
Lewel 1 LSS
EREEE Armerwan Llecine Power Conmpany
2030 Mopadbe
Ay Appk Inc.
3,200 ATET Inc
2 1M Caterpillar Ine.
[T Chevreon Componilion
BRI Citgroup noe
5,158 2740 Coca Cole Co,
B 4] Conwasl Corponalen
EX N VS Carcneuk Corporatuon
1. 2600 [heer & O
2L IDuke rneroy Corportion
AT MO Covrpy -Mlass
2,300 Fzoon Maobal Corp.
21140 3,250} Fluor Cesrp.
5,270 4,520 Frecpor-MoeMornn Copper & Cold Tne.
15,712 el 11 ] Cencral Flectre o,
ERELY FHalktbunon Compuany
| =002 4 S0 Intel Clorp
3060 Imtemational Paper Company
J AU ERCTE 4 TP BMorgan Chase & Co.
RN L] Rorall Fowds Group Incorporaded
200 Marathian (Jllf'l.1|'|‘.l.
R Muarathen Petrolkam Cormp.
IR ] 2 34A el domald s Clorp.
|30 |, 25 MoKesson Cormp
3.TA0 A1 500 Mt ife Inc
T AT Microsaofi Lo
1,420 Mk Tivee.
L =0 20150 COrculental Petroleum Clhorp,
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i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)
. Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued )
Linits
2013 2012 i3 i
S s
Chrglinary Shares ! Murnal Funds ¢ continned )
Level 1 USS jeontinued)
T f1, 450 Chawcle Corp 287 215
LEX SN La, s FPlizer Inc. 1Y 244
2315 Phibp Moms Intemational Ine 2 -
250 Proctor & Camble Conpany M -
26000 Chuadeommn Ineomprated T -
23500 Ross Slores 174
140 Slabe Streel o 211
1. 200 Uinnted Technologwes Corp iR
1,700 Viereon Communications Ine 152
fa | L0 Woells ]'illé'_i:l & "."l.:ll'l!{'l:ll'l'_l.-' 212
22155 22255 Acacn Balananeed Fund 2887 2480
23033 23033 Acmon Conservative Pund 2740 20
A [shares 11X - Propeny Ykl Fund 213
124785 DR
92423 51.284
Level 3 BS
30000 EXLYA Fory ol Fadelity Intemational nves toent Faod Tonated , Tndes Linked Sub
Fund, Cliass N shames Senes 3 2868 213
24,478 Clad Cilobal Bond Tand 3417
5,603 CEAL Global Fuity Fund T4
4 66T Hiowws .-'\:['-ulhl::ll}' Fugds 1"10° ®i7
11671 Findlay Park Fund s PLC B33
497 Morgan Stanley Investoent Funds 32
18,210 Polar Capital Funds PLC - Nonh Aomencan Fund 282
2413 Wells Fargo & Company 482
ER ] 2013
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)
5 Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued)
Uinits
2013 2012 213 2012
5 b
Preferemee Shares
Lewvel 2
87460 HT A0} Commonwealth Bank 1ad . 7005 BH2G BHMG
150 150 FamCuard Corporation Limited: Pime + 1.50% 150 150
100,000 [LESREY B Fudelty Bank Linuted; Prone + 2.25% 100 1060}
4. 365,000 4 A5 0N Freepont Chl Holdmes Compamy Td o Proowe + 17575 4 365 4 365
14341 14,341
116,612 68,538
Lewel lawl 2 lewl 3 Tostaal
$ § § $
Financial assets at fair salue through peofit or loss
Trading sccurites Q2423 92423
Avanlable for sale myvestnments 14,341 D84 24,184
PBulunce As of December 31,2013 02423 14.341 QgH48 116612

Tavel 1

The Tair value of Iinancial imstroments traded inoan active market s based on clunlL‘Li market ]::'il_'l:.x al the reporling clate.

Laveel 2

The Lair valoe of linancial instrments nol waded inan active market whose valuation is determined by quoled markel price.

Lavel 3

I'he Lair value of nancial imstroments oot traded o an active market whose valoation is determined Ir':.' the net asset value.
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The National Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

3. Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Conlinued )

Durimg the vear, the nusvements in mvestments af fair value throwgeh prodit or loss comprise:

Lasvel 1 lLowvel 2 Lavel 3 Total
5 b = %
Huolinee as of January 12003 51,254 14.341 2913 538
Purchascs RIS 12 45, 148
Sales (3, 345) - - (335
Moct realised samd(loss) J4ul - . e
Mot unrcalised caind(loss) 7T 233 AR
Balance As of December 31, 2013 92423 14.341 DH48 116612
Lewel 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
b % s 5
Balance as of January 1, 2012 47053 4,541 20 05 (130
Purchases (IR0 - - 1 S FD
Sitles (1 - - (11t
Net realised gain/(loss) 4 1
Mot unrealised gamdiloss) 1728 - (23) 1,705
Balance As of December 31, 200012 51,254 14.341 2913 08,5238

As ol December 31, 20003, the cost of ordinary shares/mutual Tunds and preference shares tolals 584385 (2002 552.458) and 314,534 1(20012: 514.541).
respectively, which include the cost of Level 3 securities of 5970202001 2; 53.0000),

The net realized and unreabised mansdlosses are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive meome within “Ingome from Investments” ling

iem, and disclosed m Mole 17.
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The National Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

fr. Held-To-Matority Investments

fa) Bahamas Government US$ notes

Fawe Value

2003 2012 Ih‘.m‘ri]iiun 213 212
S b b3 %
T1AXKHD | 1AMNE G50 N2 (R 103,97
BT A HOND G648 NS A ENEE
14,102 14,102 T 130 Xi3s 14,179 14,181
L T 2O RN
MAccrued internest AT 46
23N A0 407

(b} United States of America USS treasury notes

o e Value

2013 2012 Desceripion 2013 01z
¥ $ $ 5
2 lA T.770 (.25 M5 2.0 T.755
Q520 2.2} (LOZ5% Lo 1.50F5:; 2000 6 G520 2. 2040
£, 250 6,250 .75 2T 6,20} 2,202
2403 iy K 118 w1255 20014 2.7 2007
1,755 1,755 2AXVE M2 1,761 1,762
230 P RIS
Acored mterest 1= 15
23078 20904

As ol December 31, 2003, United States of America debt was rated AA+ (2012 Ad+) by Standard and Poors.
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The National Insurance Fund

Mobes o the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 30, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

Held-To-Maturity Investments {Continued )

{ey Government of Barbados USS bonds

Face YValue

2013 2012 Deseriplion 2003 202

b.] % H %

2571 NN Class By R0 20049 2571 AN

2 RIH) 2 50HD T 250 2| 2.6 2677

5232 5,677

Accrued nterest =ik 12

5321 3779

Asof December 31, 2013, Barbados foreign currency debt was rated BB- (20012 BB+) by Standard and Poors.
(dy  Clitigroup Foanding Inc. notes

Face Value

2013 2012 Deseriplion 20013 2

5 5 3 5

RIELY REEEY US% A-Month TIBOI + 3.25% 2015 RAEEY RAREY

Acorued interest ] f

3000 J.006
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The National Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

G. Held-To-Maturity Investments { Continued )

ey Government of the Cayman Islands LSS honds

As ol December 31, 200 3, the Cavman Islands foreign currency debt was rated Aad (20012: Aad) by Moody s,

Face Value

2013
$

AN

2012

$

i Corporate Bonds LSS
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Face Yalue
20

$

250
250
250
250}
250}
25)
2500
25
250

250

2012

b3

Description

5.050:; 29

Accrued nterest

Description

Frecpor MoeMoran Copper & Cold 35000, 2022
Anhcuser Busch Incorporated 25005 2022
Anmuayon Incorporated 22500 20022

Amernican ntemational Croup 48890 2022
Crldman Sachs Group 36359, 2023

Maorgan Stanley Modwm Term 4885 0 2022
Simon Property Croup 2.75% 2023

st Diagnosties Incorporated $7005 0 2021

l'eva Phamuceutical Fmance 24955 2022

[Mhermw Fisher Seientilic Incorported 36000, 2021

20013 2012
s =
2478 2475
15 15
2493 2490
2013 2012
b b

326
231
227
Tk
235
249
LN ]
I
232

245



The National Insurance Fund

Motes (o the Consalidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

. Held-To-Maturity Investments ( Continued)

(fi Corporate Bonds US% Continued)

| TR S T

21 A Z01 2 IMescriplion
] %
250 - Ulpitesdd Flesnhth Caroup 2755 223
2500 - Wl ot Incorprorated 3 S 2
250 - Daer & Conpany 26005 2022
250 - Carneral Dynamics Corporation 2.25% ) 2022
2500 - Cemerrnl] Blectre Copital Caoup 3 10%0 . 2023
2500 = Al &) Ir:||.'|.:-|'|1:u.':||-.'|.‘| 2635 ¥
250 - Teletonica Emisiones 5013590 20020
250 - Verson Conmunications Incorporated 2.45% ; 2022
2500 - Fhay Incoporated 2oy, 2022
2500 - e ke Clorpeoaratiomn 25
.'.\L'L'II.II.".I ]rl['.'l!.'h-.
Te Loans and Receivables
[a) Bahamas Government registered stocks

frvestments in Bahamas Government registered stocks hiave interest rtes varying from 400% 1o 6635 (200 2: &,

of which are tied 1o the Bahamian dollar Prime rate (Prime).

Frocas %alone
2amg A

1 7, 0%
1 RER £ FLd
1 7821
ATTS
27 HA0
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LD e s wmi paliasns
-

40, 2 Prorame = COOERE o | W5 ) 0N M1

232 ey Pownne 4 O30 e L1355 , G635 2]

1 e, 200 I'rinas + COOF5 ber 1025950 XS Bl

1 "RER 1y FLE PPrivves 4 DVEFS25 fow O 57000 0 A 10V pes 37050
1 78, HX)y THroviam: & OV ORYS Qo 00 B | < 2550 o 4 MWe
DR TTS e A OO0 Low OF <R TR0 - 2

37 HRO im0 18T o O 6300 NS -20RT

SAwwrucd intoies

MM

205

b 5
]

XA
=
231
2360
236y
220
231
225
257
223
P g

250

2012

4,757
-1

451001

b oy L
Pl

AL Y
+

23 A7
176, 0%
17403 457U
175, X0

0 TTS

*7 RA0

AR HA3
26560

e T 500

1o G00% ) per

AR, sl

o I
22 07
1776 0%
17550 42 LY
1778, M
0 TTS
27 B50

PN
O SHH

LR et CEL T



The National Insurance Fund
MSotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )
1. Loans and Receivables (Continued )
(a)  Bahamas Government registered stocks (Continued)
The effective mterest mate carned on Bahamas Government registered stocks was 3,15% (20020 5 30000, and registered stocks waih Lace values
totalling S15.5640 (2012: 530 420) have fixed interest rates varying Trom S0 w0 6635 (20012: 4109 to D00% ) and maturities ranging Irom 2014

b 2020 (200122 2013 1o 2029)

ihy  Certificates of deposit

2013 2012

5 5

Certihates of deposit 191,510 192,181
Proviswn lor doabitiol accounts (1,715} (20011
[ | (R AR E

Accermied mierest AEAD 41062
193,631 194,182

During the year, certilicates of deposit carned interest ol mtes of 130 w 5007 (2002: 2755 10 52550 per annume The ellTective mmterest carned

on cortificates of deposit was 383% (20012 3.97%). The vast majority of certificates of deposit matare within 12 months of the statcment of
linancial positon date,

The Fund is permitted, under foreign exchange controls of the Central Bank of The Bahamas, o invest a maximum of 525 million annually (5623
million quarterly) in specilic foreign cwrency nvestments. This annoal facihly commenced w0 2000 and annual maximums ranged  from
S12.5million o 525 milhon. As o December 310 2003, certilicates of deposit include United States dollar (USS) deposits of 517,047 (200 2:
$2.680).

As ol December 31, 2003, the Fund has 51715 (20012 52000y i certilicates ol deposit with Gull Union Bank (Bahamas) Tad., which is in
compilsory hiudation. Accordingly, the Fund has made tall provision for amonnts omtstandimg, A payment of 5285 was receved m 2008 and no
prayroenl was recerved m 200 2
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The National Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 20013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

7. Loans and Receivables (Continoed)

() Bahamas Mortgage
Herics
L

B B B
TLM S

Corporation bonds

Ihescripion

15 AT Fovmad sy Poirmee; N2 20027
ol Wasr Fosmcd s Prirmaes ™ less 200G foy 500G 2001 320157

25 vear bonds; Primes? less 2000090 1o 5250 2001 3-20137

Acerred imterest

vl 3 vl 2
154X} IS AN}
TSN TI AN
IR REN ] L5 By

1ol ik RO 0

1437 1.4H3

T2 037 107085

These bonds are coarantecd by The Bahamas Gosernment, As of December 31, 2003 and 2002 the ace values of the bonds egual the carrying

values, excluding scerued inlerest.

(d)  MNassau Airport Development Company Limited debt securitics

Face YValue
2013
5

5,280
5780
RN A
RN
13,154
SANN)
SANK)
SANND
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The terms ol these bonds deem Prime o be no Jess than 70077

2012 Description 2013 2012
$ % %

T EN KD I35 Senes A suborhnated paricapatiog: debt, 13000 200 5,286 [OIKK)
Wi LI5% Senes A subordmated participating debr; 13005 260 SR RN
AN WD 135 semer debt potes: 55000 e RN LA L)) QI
AN 155 semor debil nodes, 8500 20031 QTN QNN
HILNND U155 Senes B subordmated participatmg debe 105006 20 13 154 RN
SIHHD 13% senor debt notes: Senes 130 6335 2005 S IEND SN
AL LI5% semmor debt nodes ) Senes A G345 2005 SN ASIKN)
SINH LI5S senmor debt netes: Senes O 6O 44905 W85 SN SANN)
SR126G 745X}

Acoried mierest 15515 11,245

T3.941 a6045




The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

7. l.oans and Keceivahles (Continued)

iy Nassau Adrport Development Company Limited debt securities {continued )

I'he Fund acquired debt securities of Nassau Adrport Development Company Limited (NALL The proceeds of the deb offerings were used lor the
linancing of phase [1 ol the expansion of the Lyrden Pindhng Tnernatonal Aarport, Durime 2002, an addigonal 515 million in secured noles was
acguired wward the linancing of phase 1L

The senor debt notes are supported by a lirst priority security mterest inall assets of NALYL The subordinated participating debt bears imerest ol
I 2.00%: per annum, with 2005 1o be seitled in cash and the remaimng TS 0 be settled 10 kind, Thas debt s supporied by a seeond priority
securily interest in the collateral supporting the senior debt notes. Principal repayment of 510,274 of the subordinated participating debt was made

during 201 3.

(e) Education Loan Authority bonds

Face Value

2013 X0z Desceription 2013 bl e

% % % %

| 5400 SELEA] Seres A Prime +0025% 0 2020 15,783 15884
0 750 i 7Al) Series 13 Prme + 05805 2023 101,161 ([N =
[£r 2500 1Lk 2500 Renes O Pranwe & 0073% 2025 1o 2028 200,40 2102
46 024 47,140

Accermed mierest s ] Het

47,808 48,024

These bonds are guarantesd by The Bahamas Government,
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The Mational Insorance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Finincial Statements
December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thonsands of Bahaonian dallarss
(Contimued)

1. Loans and Receivables (Continoed

(fy  Bahamas Development Bank bonds

Fawr Vulow
2003 Lz heswription 213 il
% % 5 $
1TRANX] ERXLES Soenics 14 Prine hess TORT L 20003020 H1AXH) (ALY L
| 34Xx] IRRYLY Soeries A Priose, 20200 2024 150xH) | 5K
1T KX] XKD Mernes P Prione bess LIRS 202010 HIi2d 1IKN) IR KN
| 1O0%) RLLY Series O Prione, 2082020024 11.0%¥ | 1AENE
URELE oK
Avcenicd nlenesl a2 a2
J6.492 45492

sy Do bs g s Iy Ul Badingnes CGiovemmmment.
(g Bahkamas Electricity Corpormtion Bonds

Fave Valow
A i Desoript oo 2014 iz
3 .3 Y 5
[RLIK 141604 PSS Series A0 64 3% 26 F.IMI% 143003
o A4HE L AU B SNeties Boad 159, 202 T fH4R7
18 557 8,557 I Secies €7 00505 20260 I5.523 15522
el 2002
Avcceuvad e ekt 5 TS
26049 26,087
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

7. Loans and Receivables (Continued)

(hy  Preference Shares

Foce YValue

013 2012 Description 2013 01z
= % % =
20N 2O Colina Holhings Bahamas Limiled: Prome + 15000 20N 2000
3L Caand Rahama Power Company Tamted: 7 25% 100 3NN
A5 3500 Cable Bahamas imited: 7005 20035 3500} 3.5
RIS L RELE Cable Bahanas Lionited ; 8.00% . 2019 RS L 5000
Canbhbean Crossings Limuted; 70005 20160
S RLRIE Y Fadeliny Bank (Bahanas ) Lamited ) 3755 2021 ALY RALLY
17,500 14.500
As ol December 31, 200 3, the cost of preference shares 1totals 5175000 (2012: 514 500).
(i} Bank of The Bahamas Limited bonds
Frece % olonee
200 A 2olz eseriplion 2013 2012
= b % =
BN Smerpies 1 Proerws; 20013 A AN
2l Series O Pricne; 200041 - 2600
1) Serwes 13 Prome; 20005 [ENLLE]
L 13,5403
Acored intenes - fsd
- 13,508

The Senes B, O and 13 bonds were supported by Bank of The Bahamas Limited's Government Guaranteed Advanced Education Loan Scheme
portlodio, Bank of The Bahamas bonds wotalling 135 million seere redecmed during the year to assist with the purchase of Bank of The Bahamas
Non-Volng Sharcs
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The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

7. [.oans and Receivables (Continued)

Ik Clifton Heritage Authority bonds

Face Yalue

2013 2012 Description 2013 01z
% % h %
1,126 1,126 Prove + (0L.75% 2020 112 1,126
1.455 1 455 Prommes + (0 5005 2025 1455 1455
4204 42049 Prove + (L6350 2030 4210 4214
1144 (R Prames + (0 75%; 2035 1,149 1,149
Tl T4

Acerued intensst i 442

T.995 TA98

These bonds are guarantecd by The Bahamas Government.

(ki Latin American Investiment Bank (Bahamas) Lid. bonds
In prior vears, the Fund acquired 53,000 of the bonds that are supported by the Government Goaranteed Advanced Educaton Loan Scheme held in
trust by Socicte General Proivate Banking. Interest is carned at 0.70% above Prime. As of December 31, 2003, the camrying amount of the homds

mcludes the principal of 52,312 (20012:52.443) plus acerved inerest of 5845 {2012: $766).

During the wear, pnncipal payments tolalling 5131 (2002: 5Nil) were recerved. with comulative principal payments totalling $2.687(2012: 52.556).
I'he bomds Tully mature i 20415,
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The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

7. l.oans and Keceivables (Continued )

i Loans to Bahamas Government entities

Adklitional Repmyments)
01-Jan-13 Funiks Adjustments 3-Iec-13
5 b S 5
I 30M3 - (102 200l
(FRUTE g 2,500 S 25000
W S0 4 K 4 KD
A3 7,200 (1012 10,16l
Accmed interest 25 () 22
3088 7.200 e 10183

Additional Repayments/
ml-Jun-12 Fumnik Acljus e nts I-Dec-12
b3 ] s 5
1314 31 ([ 136) 1065
ERED] (136 1003
Acomed mtenest 27 _ i) ) 02 25
3,226 - (1.38) 058
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The National Insuranee Fond

MNotes 1o the Consalidated Financial Statements
Decembar A0 2013

iExpressed in Thousznds of Bahamian dellars)
(Contineed)

7. Loans and Receivables {Continued )
in |.oans to Buhamas Geveroment entibies (eontimoed
B
Iharing August 2U09, the Foned participatsd ina mwedi won 1SS Lo Baviliny prosvsbed o onbe Bahanas Blearicity Corpoqution (B3I o oelimanee s
exisding T785% debe vblegations. The o bears imterest ut T8S 2 menth TIROR plos 1355 0 with poincipal and iorerest payable guarterly. The terms ab this
leaany v extended dueing 2002 toomaioee Apeal 2008 I 2.0 dhe loam was futher excencled and 1sosehednled i mannre Nevembeer 20040 e loan s
mwaranteed B The Batiooas Oessemowent,

RAfC

[aveng 2003 abe Fumd throngeh o Meowrmeion o Understanding stk the Ministey of Fovirenosent & owsdmg agreed 1o lemd ap SO0 milTeon foe be
Habtres Matamel Fleesine O onsimochiom proseemse. Phe inierest e o ehis loam e 2000 plhs che 97 cdiy ] ecosomy BOLzawe wp 1he isswg dade 7| g Toneds
arc to b dishursed e gquarterly instalmcmts ol 325 million with the Niest drasadenwn disbursed during Docember 2005 The Toem will be repaid Imon
it ssucd Ungh lencling iestitations anher than Balamaes Mortpoge Corporation (M

WRE

[aena 2003 the Paed agreed to fomd 1o 510 mallon o the Waer & Sewerage Copormen (%S o finanee the desizn amnd consometion of a Waseewager
Trewmmenn Plant at Ciladswone Boad wservice e 3ol Mar Besont aod sormoomedin areis, Tlas Loun bears jmenest o 37570 il s repagidile over W yeaes
with vnly ioteret payetents Beiog node during 1he Geel tes veurs of the aeecenuent. Aototal of S0 drincdown was received by WSC a0 December 3

Mk

im]  Lang-term e posil

Fave Value IDeseripiion 2113 1) B!
i3 aniz % b
¥ b

A MY 3000 Baalioaas Thos cloponeal Tiaok 3737 0 2006 MK 30006
A5 Lanmuils Chardion Insurnnee £50F 1 2023 3504

fa, Al ERILLY

Aweraed erest A4 -]

6,354 Auud
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The National Insurance Fund

Moles Lo the Consolidated Financial Stalements
December 31, 2013

[Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

Loans and Receivables (Continued)
im)  Long-term deposit (Continued
g the vear, a0 53 mmillon deposat was plagced wath Babamas Dievelopment Bank Tor four years ae 3,755 mterest per aomuam, The funds are 1o be
wsed 1o establish a roadwaork compensation loan Facility to assist small businesses impacted by the New Providence Road Tmprovement Progeet. NIB
purchased S35 mullion of Famly Guoardian Smele Premiom Deferred Anmuiy, The annmty camms aninterest rate of 308% amd menures m 2023, The
interest rate 15 puaranieed not o fall below 258% for the brst 5 years, Therealter Tuture guarantees will be reviewed every 5 wears on the annuity
amniversary date.

in}  Bridge Authority bonds

Fawce Wil i

2013 2012 Descriplion 2013 2012
D5 DG Privvws + 1.25% 2049 b I OSG
[ 10025 Proves o 1,530 224 10025 1,025
w2 =2 Prires o 16375 X249 =12 2
2,783 2783

Accereed mlenest oL 11

2. 520 I.4529

([ Iidelity Bank ( Bahamas) Limited notes
Face Value

2013 2012 Descriplion 2013 2012
b » H =
WY O Meries [ Motes: Prose + 1.75% 0 20015 WY HINY
SN} SNF Herwes M Nodes; TUO00% 20107 SN SR
SN S Roerwes B Motes, G000 NH S SNy

| (XK} TiXXE Rerpes 18 Moles; Preieres o 1.75% ; 022 1iMKe 1A0MY
2.} 2 N

Acomed interest 28 28

Z.H3I8 2.R2IR
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The National Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
iContinued)

7. Loans and Receivables (Continued)

ipr The College of The Bahamas redeemable term notes

Fuce Valoe

20014 2012 i seriplion 013 201z
§ $ $ .
2883 2 883 TAMIE . 20020 L FE 2 AN
docrued interest I |
2.3 2584
gy Public Hospital Authority Bonds
Face Yaluc
2013 2012 Ihescrighion 2013 2012
+ + = %
(RN B4 AW s 20035 I CEN D
Acccmed interest 77
1077 -
3. Mot Investment in Finance Leases
Mel investment in lnance leases comprise:
20013 201z
Ceroosy rocedvirf oy
[No later tham ome yoar 15,76l [
I zater thizanm one }'x'::r'.‘llnl. ol bvter thiam Dive WL TN 124 ST HAH]
Iater than five years L5 G624 62 232
134,518 134, 55K
Ulnearmed Dmamnce meon: (56791 {30 S0
127,722 D5 105
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The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

8.

Met Investment in Finance Leases (Continued )

The net mvestiment in finance leases can be further analysed as follows:

2003 2012

b3 ]

Mot Jater than one yea [ 01550 2,340
Fater than one vear and not e than Bve vears 45,162 57
[Later than five vears 71550 47,221
127,722 95.108

The Fond presently has eleven (200120 ten) office buildings bemg leased to The Bahamas Government under finanee lease

agrecments, as follows:

2013 2012
% b3
Poancana [hll, New P'rovidence S ) 100443
Ihompson Booleval, New Providence 12,726 15067
Polwee THeadguarters, Ceand Bahama 4020 5,531
Podwe Dommiories, Cramnd aharma 2 141 2432
Robmson Road, New Providence Jnaz Rt
Polee Reswences, Crand Bahama 2,338 2055
Poliwee Covimmas o, Caand Baharma 653 742
ol Coard Hoose, Caand Bahana 34 3
Froecpon Covemment Complex 24,170 25,288
Mlarsh Tharhor Covemnuent Conglex 27,805 20022
Oflee of the Alomey Ceneral AT
127,722 95,108
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The MNational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

8. Net Investment in Finance Leases (Continued)
Claughion House Limited
O Seplember 120 1996, the Tund purchased all of the sutstanding shares of Clanghton House Limited {(Tormerly Chenneal Realty (Bahamas) Holdings

Limatecd) (Clanghton [House) whose sole asset was an ofhce boilding i Nassau, New Providence, Llfective the same date, Clanghton Houose agreed (o
cnter into a fifteen (15) year linance lease with The Bahamas Gowvern

enl Tor the alfice building. The payments due under the lease agreement were sel,
and are to be revised as necessary, 1ooallow the Fund (o recover its capital ontlay and yicld a return of 1.75% above Prime (an eflective rate of 6.50% per
anmum i 2003 amd 0.530% m 2002%  This lease expired June 13, 2001 and as of December 31, 2003 the utle 1s pending transfer w0 The Babamas
Coovernment, which 1s responsible for the maintenanee . insuranee and taxes onthe ollice building,

Bahamas Government buildings

In prior years, the Ministry of Finance neeotiated appropriate funding packages with the Fand for the construction or repovation of cerain buildings,
namely Potnciana THIL T hompson Boulevard, P'olice Headoguarters, Police Dormitories, Robinson Boad, Police Residences, Police Gyminasionm and Police
Cruard louse. In 2002 the Freeport Government Complex and the Marsh arbour Government Comples were translerred from Work in Progress to Net
Investment in Fimanee Leases. Tn 2003 the OfMce of the Anormey General Building was transferred from Work in Progress 1o Net Tovestment in Finanee
Laases, The Fund has exceuted ease agreements with The Babamas Government [or these bimldings, on the same terns as the Doance lease imvolving
Claughton House,

et Cons trocti ongd

Tiwecatioon RHenowvition Commenced  Agreed Date of [emse
Povnciana il New Providence ] 12310002
Thongson Boulevard, New Provadence 2K 10531/ 20003
Porlice Headguarters, Crand Bahana 2NN iy P b RE
Podice Domutones, Caand Bahana 20K TSl F A |
Robanson Road, SNew Providence lf 4% (70 s
Podice Residences, Caand Hahamo 20000 1O 120100
Porlice Coymnas g, Crand Bahano 20N TEVEN] 20000
Police Cuard Howse, Crand Bahans 20601 1000 20100
Frecpont Covemnuent Conglex JIHED [RERA R AR e
Marsh Harbowr Government Comgrlex R AT N e
Ofiice of the Awomey General 200D 12152013

The Fund fimanced the construction or renovation and furmshing of these buildings.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(Expressed in Thm
(Continued )

scands of Bahamian dollars)

9. Investment Property

A of Tanuary |, 2003

As of Decembar 31, 2003

As ol lanuary 1, 20072

As of December 31, 20012

Fair Vulue Hicrarchy

Bucna Yista Buildimg
Famington Boad Builkling
Mordermistic Building

Bueni Farrington Mlscheroistic
Wista Rouwd Building Building Tustal
s S $ s
200N 200 5X S.0120
2000 206010 520 5,120
JIAK] 2 S 51200
2AH0 26010 520 5,120
lewel 1 lowel 2 lawel 3 Fair Value
2000 2 W
20 Jorda
S20 520

Phe Fair walues of investment propertics are determined every three vears by oan independent professionally qualilied appraiser. In determinimg the
saluatons the appratser relers w o seighted average of the Cost Appeoach and the imcome Approachs, There was no clange o the valuation techngue nsed

al the last appragsal as of December 31, 2010 |
There were no chanee between Level 1 and Level 2 during the vear.

Amounts recogmised m the consoludated statement ol comprebensive meome as

propertics are as [ollows;

Eental mconw:
Ihresct o peraling exrenses

O propenty that genensted rental meone

[ H1 propeny Thaat ol il nast el ronlae] am e
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The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IDecembier 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

9. Investment Property (Continued )

Operating lease aereements have been entered into For all investment properties.

Location

Buena Vistad/Tohn Watlmg's [nsullery, Moecting Strect, New Providenoe
Bahames Covernmenl, Famington Road . New Providenee

Matwnal Insumnce Board, Wultt Road, New Providence

el Insommee Board, Freepornt, Carand Baban

The Buoens Vista lease agrecment melodes a purchase option that muast be exereised wathan the lirst three vears ol the agrecmen

lease Term

10 years
21 wears
21 vears

2 oyears

lease Date

1170320001
(N2 AW 12
(0] 2H0 19T
(1NN

L The lease agreements [or

Farcipgton Foad, Walll Road amd Frecpon may have revisions 1o the rem every three years tooreflect the cost of living incrcase bascd o the retail price

mdes of the preceding three years. The commatments on leases For investment properties are analysed as follows;

Buena Farrington ¥ ul IT Hosad Freeport, Gl
Wista Houd Building Building Building Testaal
b b b % %
Mo later than | vear 2K 174 03 i1 1,243
[aterthan 1 yearand no later than 5 years HiN [ 115 R 5 1My
Later than 5 years 67 5,544 5534 18,54
1.767 T.418 26l 11516 21.262

10, Investmenls in Associales

As ool December 310 2003, the Fund owned 4334453 (2002: 4,334,453 of the ordinary voling shares of Bank ol the Babamas Limited, representing

2RO0TE (20012 27 80% ) of the wial outstanding ondinary votng shares,  During 2003 6,022,945 non-votng ordinary shares were purchased Trom the
procecds of Bank of Bahamas bonds and Certificates of deposits held by the Fund. The Fond also onned 3034 483 (2002 3084 483) of the ondinary
shares of Cable Rahamas Limited, representing 22.30% (2002 22,3279 of the wotal owtstanding ordinary shares. During 2001, the Fund was given aoseat
ont the Board of Dircctors, which upon reassessment led o the conclusion that the Fund has the abiliny woexereise signilicant imfluence. Accordingly, the

mvestiment was rechssiied Irom an mvestment m cguily securities Lo imvesiment i assoce.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

10,  Investments in Associates (Continuwed )

A ol January 1

Share of prohts/(loss
Ividends recemnved
Wnite dovwn of goodwall

As of December 31

2013
-3

] LY
(574
(1,213}

60,202

2012

5

1 5
SRl
(1,583}
(2.463)

61,989

The fair value of the ordinary shares held by the Tund based on the quoted prices as of December 31, 2003 15 $37 886 (2002: S537.710).

The assccaates reported the Tollowimg balances and transactions as of, and for the twelve momhs ended, December 31,2003 and 2012

2013
Bank of The Bahanos Linuted

Cable Fabaoos Lanmed
2012

Bank ol The Bahanms Tamted

Cable Bahamas Tamited
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Ansels

$

B3 075
30200

BO5.0092
22180

Lialdlitics

T2 80
20 61E

Tortal Inconmmme

$

45457
41,287

45467
47.196

Mt Incommes/(§ams )

5

(12602
13,250

33013
I1.561



The Mational Insurance Fund
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
i Continued)

11.  Compuoler Soltware

Computer software comprises:

Total
b ]

Cost
Halunce as ol JTanoary 1, 2003 T4
Acldimwns 2372
[Hspresals (145)
Balance as of December 31, 20013 2658
Accumulated amortization
Basbnee as ol lamoary T, 20014 Al
Amampation cxpense 5000
Insposals [ 148y
Balance as of December 31, 20013 3160
et ook salue as of December 31, 2013 6,489
Cost
Balance as ol lanuary 1, 2012 RALEN)
Acldimions 4347
[hsposals
Balance as of December 31, 2002 7434
Accumulated amortization
Halance as of Tannary 1, 20012 2.46]
AmOT LEUOn Cxpense 350
I nsposals
Balance as of December 31, 2012 1817
MNet book walue as of December 31, 2012 4,617
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The National Insurance Fund
Maotes te the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 51, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Contimued )

12, Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and cquipment comprise:

Land Office Medical
amd Furniture Computer Mlotor Land Toquei proenat
Buildings A Lo penenit Hardware Yehicles Improvenent & Yehicles Total
5 5 5 s 5 5 5
Cost
Balanee as of Tonoary 1, 2013 PLEAY P 3 6,317 1,718 533 T80 [REARH B
Transter (2) (2)
Additions 15,207 312 527 i) 6,300y
s provsals (173 {202 {118} (5] [E51)
Balance as of December 31, 20103 106,169 4,138 f.6410 1.600 533 T.091 126.771
Accumulated de preciation
Bulance as of Tamuoary 1, 2013 | B.055 1057 4,892 1.1l 4305 M.372
Charge forthe year 1.371 36 Bl 228 4100 3206
Inspaosals {2 (147) {2002} (115 (58] (527)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 19,427 2,146 5561 1.270 - 4,657 33,061
Net ook walue us of December 31, 2013 86.742 1,992 1079 330 533 1034 23.710
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

12, Property, Plant and Equipment (Continuwed)

Land Office Medical
and Furniture Compuler Muolor Land Equipment
Buildings & Lguipment Hardware ¥ehicles Improyement & Vehicles Total
s s 5 5 3 5 5
Cost
Balance as of January 1, 20012 3119 BRI LTS 1,722 4449 4 504 91542
L ransler (3} (3)
Additons 15,786 291 960 101 s 2,495 19.726
[ Hsposals {242) (105} (347
Balance 95 of December 31, 2012 90,962 1,999 6,317 1.71% 533 7,389 110,918
Acenmulated depreciation
Balance as of Tmuoary 1, 2002 16,753 1853 3051 HEA 35006 27.147
Charge for the vear .35 Fn 1.241 281 A 3572
Disposals {242 (105} (347)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 18,058 1,957 4,802 1,160 - 4.30= MLAT2
Met book value as of December 31, 2012 71904 2042 1.425 558 533 1084 50,546

Leased assets incladed moproperty, plant and couipment. where the Fand is the Jessor, comprise Tand and boildings and medical couipment leased o polvelinies

operated by The Bakamas Government uider operating leases.,

Land & Buildings

Medical Equipment & Vehicles

2013 2012 2003 2012

b b % b

(sl TH 422 3. 2493 T.04659] TAKD
Aeccumulated deprociation {93010 (8,524 {4057 (4 305y
MNet book value o121 54.7049 J.034 J.084
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The National Insurance Fund

Notes to the Consolidated Fi I Statements

December 31, 2013
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
i Continued)

13, Construction in Progress — Finance Leases
The Pund Dmances the constroction and Termshmg of boildings, with the intention ol entertng inlo Dnance leases wath The Babamas Government, and

transferring ownership of the buildings to The Bahamas Government at the end of the leases.  The table below discloses the movements daring the
FESPUCTIve Vears,

2013 i B

& &

Balance as ol January 1 TH OGRE 114588
Acddditions 13511 15,255
Imterest e (Note 17) T 138 4 5003
Transler o nel mvestoeol m lmaice leases (41,027 {535,658
Balance as of December 31 53,610 TE.088

Puring 2000, the National Insurance Board resolved w redoce imerest charged on outstanding balances related W projects currently inactive to 000% As
ol December 31, 2003, projects with balances totalling S38,157 (20022 830,803 ) arc subject wo this resolution.

I4.  Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Awcounts payible and seorued expenses comprise:

2013 2012

b %

Aceounts payvable and accrued expenses 4, 3007 4,120
Acerwed vacaton pay 2544 25400
e limed benetiis [ =00 224
Frmployee penswn contnbalions 22 |43
Acerued stall retmement benelits i) 17
7.143 7.134
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

15. Staff Pension Fund

The Fund beas o delined benelt pension plan lor chigible cmplovees, wherehy the Fund makes contributions that entitles a retired cmplovee (normal
retirement age is 609 o reccive an annual pension based on years ol service and the average carnings of the 3 consceutive years prior o retirement. The
Fund’s contributions to the delined benefit pension plan are recoznized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive imcome in the vear o which they
relate. The pension plan is separately sdminisiered by o corpomate trostee. The Fomd s exposed o actuarial risks, such as longevity, curreney and interest

rate amd markaet risk,

The amounts recognisced m the consolidated statement of fmancial position are determined as follows:

2013 2012

5 5
Present vidue of delined beneli obligatons [N ] DE.278
Far valne of plan assels (3545 {31 [15)
PFFunded status - [efwen 73005 07, 193
Met liability arising from defined benefit obligation in consolidated s tatement of financial position Tin0s 67,193
The movements in the present value of the defined benefil obligations ane as Tollows:

2013 2012

% %
Aol lanuary | 08278 TH.620
Intenesi cosit 502 4,744
Cument service cost 3355 3,265
Fmployes comnbutions 20 T3
Past serviee cost 73] [ DR
Benelits paid (2 BHES) [2.0035)
Mctuzarial [:_','.Iill.\]-'-]\.:lh-.‘ﬂ.'.‘w I'I'ilnlc)q!cw:m:u [ 1.444) (1.540)
Actoarial (gains Vlosses fromehanges in denogrphic assumptions 4,176
Actoarial (opins Vosses Iomehanzes o eeononmne assuingplions ®27
As of December 31 109,059 98278

The present walue of the delined benelit obligation as ol December 300 2000 2010, and 2009 was 578,029 3063 100, and 562,040 respectively.
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Moles o the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continuedy

15. Siall Pension Fund ( Continued)

The defined benehit obhgion s allocated between the plan’s members as [ollows;

Active members
Lnactive menbers

Asal December 31, 2003 the duration of the lalaliy 1s 17 years,

The movements in the Gur value of plan assets are as follows:

As ol January |

Paprected retwm on plan asscets

Comtribution s

Bone s praicl

Achumarl j_‘_ili.rl!i."lﬂl.l""‘w"-!

Aclministration and Other non Plan Investnent Management Dapensces

As of Decemluwr 31

The allocation of plan assets as at December 31, 2003 15 s Tollows:

Assctl Allocalion

Casly on Band ond i banks

Certilwates ol degposu

Paojuity secuanties al o walue throogh prolil or Kiss
Loans and receivables

Mot curmenl assets

Faie val o ol gl aessels ol end of year

2013 2002
% O s L
b ] Ta N T4 FR ]
) | 242 BRI 4.4
) R G827 ILARE
2013 2012
% %
ALL0ES 10N
| 2% 741
5079 31,202
[ 25585} (20035
(2200 47
(B3)
35,454 31,045
Il 2012
4% %
472 1005
| . REES F
2010 S IMy
23 387 14,230
34 1.127
A5 R b

All of the plan’s assets are domiaciled in the Commonwealth of The Babamas and are held in o separste Trust under the direction of the Truste.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20103

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

15, Stall Pension Fund {(Continoed)

Ihe expense recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Currenl service cosi

Pist service costs recogn ised

Interest exguensc/ (incone)

Adoumistration and Crher non Plan Investoent Management BExponses

Total pension expense (Sec MNote 22§

COTIIISes:

203 2012
1355 1,205
731 14,450
L0 103
H3
T.6A% Z1.726

In 2012 the Fund carly adopted the amendments o TAS 19 Fmploves Benefits, the impact of which s disclosed in Note 2000 The effeet of the carly
adoption of this change 0 accounting policy along with the Febrary 1, 2012 amendment to the Fund’s pension plan 1o remove the integration clause

required the mmediate recosninen of associated past serviee costs resalung inoa sigmilicant inerease in the pension expense n that year.

]:.]T'I]!I]'H}'L'f contributions o he ]'r:li:l o the stall ]'H_'I!Ihil.:l['l fund in the hllhu.'tllltn! Yoar are ealimated a1l 2,232 |:.J'|'|pl-:1}-uc contributions o he ]‘.Iilin:l tov the stalf

pension fund i the subsequent vear are estimated at 5782,

The movements in the liabality i the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

A of January 1

Pension eapense wecoe niacd

Contribulions - comployer

At (oames plosses fTanespenence (aith Covvemnent subsidy)
Actoarial (eams ¥losses on plan assets

Acctuanal (eams Viosses lromchanges i demographne assumplions
Actoanal (eams ¥losses [romohanees 0 economis as s nmplions

As of December 31

2013 Annual Report-73

2013 2012
5 %
67,193 77.629
7,633 21,726
(4.988) (30.561)
(1,456 [ 1.5
> (47
4170
w27
73,605 67.193




The MNational Insurance Fund

Motes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian doellars)
(Continued)

i

. Siall Penston Funmd (Continoed)
The prmcipal actuarial assomplions used were:

2013
Rates per anmum

iz
Ihscount rate SN AN
]"J:rlrl.'h'l.l TR TR ] ]‘.l|.||| HESTH §4 SN 50005
Tuture salary mercase:
al age 18 506N
b ape 59

000

5.0000% 5000
Farly setirement rates vsed were 09 belore completing 300 years of pensionable service anmd 1006 after completing 30 years of pensionable service.
Muortality rates have been taken from the 1994 Uninsored Pensioner Mortality Generational Table at 2014 w

Proqection Scale Ad (20020 149494 Group
Anpuity Mortality Statie Table), The mortality rates wsed Tor December 31, 2003 allow for improvements in life expectancy as illostmted below;

Crenuher

Age MWlale T lee
Ape ol X4 3 e LN
Ao O i 200 vears 25,00 2153

Semsitivity Analvyis

[he calculaton of the defined benefit obliganon 15 sensitive o the assumptions used. The following able summarizes how the defined benefit obliganon
as Al December 31, 2003 wonld have chaneed as a result of @ change i the assemplions osed

Discount Hale
Future salary increase SR 4 AN
% % %
SINKE [EN AR | 2 =y 0F 733
4 50V [0W s, 20 1 25, 2449 472
550 112071 133754 93117

The delined benelnt obligation wonld be 51113537 00 the averaee hife expeclancy 15 inereas
caleulating the defined Benelit obligations using the revised assumptions.

il by ome vear. These sensitivities were caloalated by ne-

In.  Fidelity Bond Reserve

Pursuant 10 Section 12

2 ol the Begulations, NIB has established o Gdelity bond reserve 1o insure the Fumd against the nisk of defaleation by cashicrs,
storekeepers or other custodians of the property of the Fund,

[here was no income or expenditure in respect of this reserve Tor the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2012,
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The National Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(o

il

17.  Income from Investments

Income from trustee securities:
Bahumas Government registered stocks

Income [rom other securilies:

Cenilicate of deposit

Laomg Term Depaosil

M sau Aarpor Development Company Limited debt securies
Bahamas Morgage Corporation bonds

Dividends fromordmary and prelerence shares
Faduwcation Loan Authorily bonds

Boahamas Covernmenl LSS notes

Bohumis Development Bank bonds

Buhumis Electricity Corporation bonds

Bonk ol The Bahamas Limited bonds

Covernment ol Barbados LSS bonds

Clifton Heritage Authority bonds

United States o Armerica IS5 treasury noles
Frdelity Bank (Babhamas ) Limited notes

The College of The Bahamas redecmable tenm notes
Bridze Authorily bonds

Consolidated Water {Bahamas y 1ad. bonds
Covernment of the Cayman [slands USS bonds
[irvans to Bahamos Govermment entites

[atin Amercan Investment Bank (Bahamos L. bonds
Pubhic Hospatal Authonty Bonds

Corporate Bonds TIR5

Citigroup Funding Ine. notes
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20a 2012

5 5

33,052 34 4955

33052 34,955
G, 7THS =ik
152 I
7.5H) 1573
4176 4. 234
778 4.254
2,102 2.1 16
1] 2,158
1.1 1 LHE
1.7001 170K
327 BT
30 113
425 425
158 (14 8]
1#4 187
174 bt
172 173
3
152 152
137 138
126 133
77 -
[[LN] -
126 126
33,960 35,147




The National Insurance Fond

MNotes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
December M. 2013

(Expressed in Thowsands of Bahamian dhellars)
(Continued)

17. Income from Investments {Conlinued

200 2012
&
Income from ather invesiments:
Interest ineome on nel investment o lnanee Leases £, Tk 5100
Inlereal incaine on eansirachon in progeess  Dnatee leases (Sole 13) 213N 4504
Mot piin i bvestnoents it valwe throwgh prolil or Toss (Nt 5) A 4
Met unrealizsed giimem investments ul fair valwe throwseh prodico or Toss § 8o 53 7_Kull 1,705
Soer renlimed saindloss b o other investinents {11 14
17,167 11,432
B4.770 81.524
1%, Income from Property
i) B 012
b
Mot e
Froeon oflice congples L] fEy
Mow Providenes boaildinges 2 £}
Fruals Clunwes TS 74
ZA7S 1,994

1%, Capital Viloes of Awards of Periodically Payable Disablement and Dealh Benefils

Section 200037 of ehe Beoulatons provades that the capual value of peswadwcally pavable disabbement and deasth benctis awacced ioa sear is chaceed against
the e aneeane 1w owvnwe sl exprencliuce soveant ol e mdwsinia] Beosins o, Do alse vredinesE o g cumem accout, which 1 farther creadind
with the inwsae Trom the imvestment ol e sl reserve ancd debited with the actual paymems of pericedical disablemwent amd deoth benclie attecwed during
the v Thee Balinme os thiee trampsderrenl of ghe ead ol the wear o e eserve gceonnt. e espenstitome o the ansbusteral Tene B Besincle o s ez uf
abrer elpsablermend mnd Jdeath Buepefos reserve snw eloyamoed i e corpselilied soienemt of 1,'11|n|:|n:|l-::|'|hi".':: TIPS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IDecember 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

0. Amount Invested in Other Assets (See Note M)

Aamount mvested i other assets comprises:

Cash on hand

Cash at banks — cumment accounts

Cash al brokers

Recewvables and advances

Propand cxpensces and deposins
Computer sollwans

Propeny, plant and equipnent
Construction m progress — nance leascs
Accounts pavahlie and accemed cxpenses
Accrued benelins payable
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2013 2012
% %

k] it
G077 }.050
Fia i ] 1 AR
21,23 10207
5490 1208

LA Bath] 4.6l
21,555 220602
S350 TH ORE
(7.143) (7154
(3060 (< 1061
Y524 110,406




The Mational Insurance Fund

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

21, Other Expenses

Cither expenses comprise:

2013 2012

b 3

Foepanrs and mamtenance XA 2400
Lnlitics 1.622 1.033
Consultancy tees 1.502 BT
Printimg, stationery and congpuater supplhics T} 05
Trans portation and travel qonk 353
Traming and scholarships 2713 e
Janitonal AR RIEY
Advertismg and publweity 219 334
Fxtermal secunty a7 522
Kent 324 36
Motor velncles 277 273
Insurance 244 240
[cpal cxpenscs 229 24
Aadn fees {Eits] (L)
[Razal property lax s | 3K
Bank chargcs 29 30
Tribunal membershap 32 il
Compuler Semvices o 23
Cther muscellancous expenscs Ly T2
9,351 9.109
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The MNational Insurance Fund

Moles Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20013
(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

2. Employee Beneflits

3 2

s 5

Penswm expense (Note 15) FEIES 21,726
Penswm expensce allocated o Modwal Beonehts Branch e {130
7489 21,590

stall salancs and allowanees 21524 AR
Caoap health plin 2518 2003
MNatonal s e e contrtbulnns B2 155
Chher benelis A12 S
12589 456494

23, Financial Risk Management
The Fund's activities expose it to credin risk. liguidity risk and interest rate risk.
Credit risk
Credin misk s the risk that a counterparty may be unable o perform according 1o the terms of a contract, As of December 31, 2003, the Fund’s 1o1al
exposire lo credit sk was STAIZ 108 (200 2: 515646120, principally concentrated wiih The Balimas Government, which as of December 31, 20023 had
Forcign and local curreney debn ratings of BB (2002: BEE) and a countey transfer and convertibility rating of BB (2012 BB ssued by Standarnd
amel Poors. As of that date] the Fund had investments, loans and aeeruals with The Bahamas Government and s entities totalling $1.266 (2002 81,299)
Certilicates ol deposit are placed with banks in good standing with the Central Bank of The Babamas or cgoivalent regulators {see Note 20
Liguidity risk

[.u;unli.l_'.' risk 15 the nisk that cash iy nol e avanlable o [BLy u|1|1;_':|li-:::h' when doe. The Tund bas no ‘-i'.:{:l'.ij.]l:.'.'llll short ternm nhl];_l:tli:ulx. anel sufhcicnt

liguid assets are available 1o meet 1ts abligations [or normal operating purposcs.

Interest rate risk
Frterest rate risk s the nisk than the Gor value or Toore cashe Sows ol Dranciad imstroments sall Queneate becanse of chomges o market imerest rates, The

mjority ol the Fund’s financial imstruments are directly linked o Prime or have short terms oo matourdy and therelore Gae value mierest rate nsk s
consulered to be minimal. The resalting eash flow interest eate risk s not hedged and considered a profit opportunity.
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

24, Contingent Liabilities

() NS has provided commitment letters o varions medical instituions and other providers of medical care to its indusirial benefit claimams,  Die 1o
the nature of these commitments, 1015 nol pracical o deternine the possible Dnancial elfect,

by The Fund 1s o party to several legal actions mvolving s activities, The und 1s contingently liable for costs and damages 1o the event of an adverse
linding by the courts: however. it is neither possible to predict the decision of the courts nor estimate the amount ol such awards. Accordingly, no
provisions have been made in these consolidated Nnancial statements relative o the legal proceedings. These leeal actions primarily involve
construction conlracls, requirements o pay coninbutions under the Natonal Insurance Aot and Reguolatons, and an action Lor delamation,
wronglulfunlair dismassal and negheence/breach ol the Data Protection Act. Management is of the opimon that the resolution ol these matters will
nod hive a material impact on the Fund’s consolidated Onancial stiements

Conumnit ments
l:'.'.r.:_lru'.'.r.'.iI ORI e TS

b
2l

Capital commitments contracted as ol the stutement of lnancial position date but not yvet incurred are as follows:

2013 2012
] E
Capital commitments 6551 185.505

{J_Il'?t"'."f.l'.rr.lrl,;' .'lF"e'l'.h" ORI TR TN
The Tutore aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, where the Fund s the lessee, are as follows:

2013 012

Moy Bter than 1 vear 42 1o
Fater than 1 vear and no kter than 5 vears 313 16
355 123
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The National Insurance Fund

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 20013

( Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

6. Employees
The averaze number of persons ecmployed by NIB during the vear was 537 (2002 53210,
27, Fair ¥alue of Financial Instruments

The followimg table summanses the carrving amonnts and Tor valoes of those Doancial instraments not recognised mothe Fund's consolidated statement of
Mnancial position at fair valoe.

Carrying Value Fair Value
2003 2012 23 201z
% b 3 %
Ceniticates of deposi 1903 31 |5hs 182 RIS 1 151
Long Term Deposit (r 55 RE} 2] ST b
FBahamas Covernment s ened stocks #7514 [ R O GTS T ATT
l3ahamas .'\.{nl'l:.-_a_::c‘ {.il|'|'ll>|'..ll.l.ilt|. homds 102,637 107 183 2472 a2
MNassau Aupon Developrent Company Limited debt scourites Timl BOMS TLETA 522
Fducation Taan Authanty bands 47 Rl 48424 At 361 490,424
Bahamas Development Bank bonds Ay A2 A2 44,505 44,20
Bahamas CGovernment USS noles UH23K AT AT EIS 33,531
Bahamas Blectne ity Carporatsen bomds 26185 26 AT 26,627 20651
Bank of The Hahamas Dimated bonds - 135,50 - 13,124
Chfton [entage Authorty bends R 7. 3,454 B, it
Cavvemment of Barbados USS bonds 5.321 3 5,688 5,755
Ulmited Stanes ol Aowrkea LSS treaswry notes 23078 2O ) 14,5955 21,45
Levans b Bahanoes Govemnpent colitivs LU E JAMEE LM RN
Latin Aneencan Invesioenl Boaok (Babzorees d 1l onds 0157 1 ME) 2987 2AsE
Clligronp noles SN SRS TROR 2R
Bndge Aauthonty bonds 2829 2.8 A0E0 3,110
|'Il.:.l.'||l_'.' Bank (Bahamea= b | amited notes 2HIK IHIR 2 HY) T H52
The Colkege of The Bahamas nedecmable tem noles 2.3 2584 2,554 2750
Covermment ol the Cayman [=lands US% bonds 2493 247 2454 24937
LIS Conprarate Bonda b A550
Pubhc Hospial Authonty Hends 1Ty - ER-7 | -
1,253,084 1,299 370 1277002 1310421

The carrying mmownts of current lnancial assets, prelerence shares, Bahamas Government treasury bills and loancial labalities represent their estinnted
fair valucs. Fair values for all financial assets listed above are determined using the discounted cash flow method. The cash flows are discounted at a rate
representimg the market rates of similar instrumaents.
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The National Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Thovsands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

27. Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments (Continued )
Fair Value Hierarchy

Loewel 1 Pewl 2 Lewl & Fair value
s 5 b H
Certilicates of deposn (24 1153 194,113
Fong Tonm [eposit 5007 LN
Bahanws Governonent registened stocks Ol 67 3 Gl 673
Hahames Mo saee Corporlon honds Q2472 02472
Massan Anport Developnent Company Tamited - T2RIA - TLRTA
Fduvation Loan Authonty bhonds 49,361 44501
b Developnent Bank bonds 44 505 44 505
Bahamas Covernment TS5 notes 3T H35 37835
Bahares Electncity Corporation bonds 26,627 26,627
Fank of TThe Bahamas Damited bonds
Cliftoon Hertage Authonty honds RA54 B.454
Covemnent ol Barbados TISS bonds 5,088 A 0HE
Dhpsted States ol Anerica TS5 Deasury notes 19,955 19955
Foans to Bahanws Covemment cntines St RRLEE
Latin Anwerican Investment Bank (Hahanss )y Lid 2257 2257
CHLEE o noles 2 HO8 2 ROK
Brdge Anthonty honds 30 LR
Fudelity Bank (Bahanoes ) Linmuted notes 230 2830
The Callege of The Balaros redecirable temm 2554 2554
Covemment of the Cayman Islands T154% bonds 2454 2454
Llpitesed States Corporate Honds 3550 3,550
Fuhhic Hospital Aathonty Bonds GR71 957
72312 12061, THID - 1,277,002
[aevel |

The fair value of Dinancial mstraments traded inoan active marken based guoted market |J]i|.'-L"-\. al thwe :-_'imzﬁllg_', date.

Level 2
The Fair vidue of finaneial instruments not traded inoan sctive market shose valuation is determined by using the discounted cash Mow methed. The cash
[Tovwes are disconnted at porate representing the market rates similar instroments,

There were no transfers between [evel 1 and [evel 2 n:lu]i]l:_; the vear.
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The National Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 1. 2013

(Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued)

25, Related Party Balances and Transactions
Related parties inclode s sobsidiary; associates; ministrics and corporations ol The Bahamas Government: agencies and entities controlled by The
Bahamas Government or in which The Bahamas Government has o sizgnificant ownership interest; key management personnels ¢lose Tamily members of
kev mamagement personnel; amd entities owned or controlled by key management personnel. Koy mamagement persomnel melude those having the
authority and responsibility Tor planning, dirceting and controlling the activities of the Fund. Balances and trinsactions between the Fund and B related
partics ane disclosed below:

oy ALanugement Clevee Famiily MVembers of T 18 uhirmois i r Cenvernmnse i Liil
Mo o inlaes I*ers omma | By b Lumiag cment Crrernmsenl Fntities and Agencics Tastiad

i) K iz i) B 2 i3 aniz ania aniz P} K iz nix 202
s s s s < % 5 s s 5 s s
Cash ol hank 213 1,17 L | 7270 10432 HA4T
Kecenables and advances i15 It ALINT 920K 20 253 H_ink

et AR 15 1 241 15n 12 LH K3 ELE
(= B (] | G5
Contobutins l B 19 [ 53 25,711 210 L1 R 9217 AT.EB3h AGGR
Adomi tmtive cxpoenses { [i%) 12 1522 1 520 1,622 1.75%
B metits 240 11 x4n 115

Recervahle amounts and advances outstanding rom related parties are mterest-bearing and wall be setiled i cash, No guarantees have been recerved amd

no provision for doubttul accounts has been made in respeet of the amounts owed by related partics.

Asgat December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, an amount of S10,418 is included in the Property. plant and equipment of the Medical Bencfits Branch
related 1o construction costs paid (o a company whose President is a close Tamily member of o former Director of NI,

During  the [irst six months of 2002, the ageney that provided seneral insurance coverage for the Fund was o wholly-owned subsidiary of a company in
which the then Charman o NTE was the company s Presadent amd Choel Bxecutive CHTcer.

The remumeration ol the directors and other members of key management personnel of the und are set owt below in aggresate for cach of the categornics
specilicd in 1AS 24 Kelated Party Disclosiees:

213 2z

$ %

Short term ermploves benclits 16800 1453
Posstemplovment bemelis 10 115
1 540 [

These balances are included in administrative expenditore in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incomae.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

8. Related Party Balances and Transactions (Continwed y

Fransactions cotered into by the Fund with s associates ioclode investments ad related ineome which are disclosed i Notes T{h), 700 and 10 of these
consolidated Dnancial staements,

As ol Decembaer 21, 2002, other related party imvestment balances are disclosed Below and the associated investment income 15 disclosed in Note 17 of
these consolidated financial statements.

Notes 2013 2012
s 5
Bahamus Government registered stocks Tl 47 519 (H0 03
Bahamas Momteage Corporation bonds i) 102 6357 LIE b
Mot investment o linance leases 2 127722 95,108
Massan Aanpoit Development Company Linited debt sccurnties Tid) TA Hio KA
Bank aof the Bahanus cortlwates of deposil T(h e (NK) A (N
LFadueation Loan Auathorily bonds Te) 47 8 A4R024
IFabhamas Development Bank bonds T Ao 42 4oy 42
Babzinees Covvermment VIS5 noles 451 2R U AT
Bahanms Blectneity Corporation bonds T(g) RGN R
Bank ol The Babuorees Dannted bonds Tinl 13508
Cable Bahamas preferenee shanes T(h) B0 B, M0
Clifton Deritage Authority bonds T 7O 708
[nvestinent propenty 9 5120 A,120
Latin Arvencan Investment Bank (Babanos ) Lid . bonds Tk 3157 32009
lLoans to Bahamas CGovermment ontities il ILEA b AL
Babhanus Development Bank lome -temm depos T(m) 3,354 RIS
Frd ge Authonty bonds TN 2,829 2829
The Colleze of The Babanuos redecnuble tenmnotes () 234 2584
Pubslic Tlospatal Aathority Bomnds ) 10077
1,223,268 1,243 .84%9
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Continued )

20, Events After The Reporting Period
() In October 20012, John Watlings Distillery Limited exercised s option to purchase the property of Buena Vista at the appraised value of 52,000,000
as per the operatime lease agreement dated November 3, 2001, The sale agreement was executed and a deposit of S200 was received i March 2003,

Ihis sale agrecment was lnaliscd in February 2004,

() During the Test guarter 2004 NI signed an agreenwent For S16.907 for the constrecton of an Oflce Comples te repheate the Atormey General Offee
located on John 1. Kennedy Dinive.

(el Dhurng the Grst gquarter 2004 NIB engaged the architectural services for $1ARS or the design ol the Ollice Complex o be used by the Bahamas
Government on the old 51, John™s Plaving Field

iy During the Hrst gquarter 2004 NI exccuated a contract to engage consultants o make recommendations o the Board regarding the implementation ol a
National Tealth Tnsurance I'lan.

(el In April 2004 the NIB agreed with the Bahamas Government o restrocture the finance leases o extend the repayment period of all outstanding
halances for 235 years and adjust the interest rate to Prime plas 0.25% effective July 1 2004,

(1) Amendments o the s and reoulations governing the Fund made in 2000 will require an increase in the insurable wage ceiling during 2004 and an
merease mpension benelits, based on the change m the Retal Prce Index.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

(Expressed in Theusands of Bahamian dollaes)
(Continued)

ML Investments of the Fund Allocated to the Reserves

Interesi Aty Shirt- s pldemaem
Wit Iade Term Pens s Ichis frid Mol il il Dl Tastal
] ] k] 5 -] ]
A ol Dewender 31, 2008
Clash al the Ceniral Bank of The Hahamas SIEEN 17 et | Sy 8
Inwesimends of G vakoe Choug by prohit o kess
Ordmary shanes § Mutmal s L | 2T
el 17,5481 17 a1
121.612 2.711 24 Sy 24013
Cenificanes ol depusan
Commmmenyealth ok 1l (1275 RV IR - O W 1 [IERLA ] [ERUET]
Bimanes Carpombeen of Baboans Limaed A ONNFE - A 2N L IAATS - 1114 15650 S350 LEHLE ]
Fank el The Balamms Linelcd AR - 4T5R (R ESAT4 - 12014 LRI LRLL]
Pideliy, Fiank { Hahamas ) iaed 255 AR (TR TR A R D | 1150 1 15% 15250 20,555
Fsr €5 Bazan Imnsmatnoial ek (Hahamos) Beaed 1I5% Adits irs
Uil Bumse A TUE T
Seotiafeank § B armes b 1 enaced o} 3 T Eq 7175
Pl Flos pital At loriy 155 195 15
Ll Umeen Feank ¢ Ihames § 1 id 20 20H
Acemied mnenear 1= LR ]
P s Torsboubiiul acgounts : (2.0} : : [z
'_"L‘i!l _'\.'.‘_E 'J!:-_E | 550 |5 250 (RG] ]
-
Babanms Cosvemmnunt regeslered s locks L E b LR L)
Bahanmos Mongage Corporisn Bomds 17 00y 1457 140, 7oy 1A FEL ] I 0 AT
1] Mansats Ampon [Resclopoeent Company Bmated dels secianiss Tial - - - Tia)
Fducation Loan Authonty Bonds LpR L 47, =
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Sodes Lo the Copsslidated Financial Statements
December A, 2013
I Expressed in Thousands of Bab

(Continued)

o dallars)

M Twvestments of the Fumd Allocated (o the Reserves (Continued)

Interesi Nhaturily
Hate Tkale

Ao il Decemboer 20, 2005 (0 i meds

Hahamos Develeprent Hank bonds
Phaliarmies Carversment 1TSS pobes
Rahamas Fhectrc ay Corpomtesn bopd =
Heank of Thie Haliamps 1 aated bonds
Picterenue shaes

Chltom 1 lem
Carvermment ol Harbalos 1SS bands

Authorsty bomds

Uimetedl States ol Amenca LSS ireasory nofes

lLavams to Hahamas (owemment o

Labm Ao znc Invesiment Wink (Bzhomasplid Hondds
wige Funding e notes

Aunthony b
v Hank (Bahamos ) Linsted pavies
The Uellege of The Bahaims w

ils

fremahk: lenm novies

Corvermment of the Caveman Dsband s 1SS bonds
Lasng Torm Deposits

LTSS Conpomate B«

Authionty Honds

I'uble: Hosp
Nt myvestnenl m Imance ises
InversLmenl prspaety
Invesimemls moassociies

Proepeny, plang
meants anvesiod i obhoer assels (Node 200
Sall pretis o Tl
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The National Insurance Fund

Notes G the Consolidated Financial Statcmenis
Devember 31, 2003

1 Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)
(Centinued)

A Investrments of the Foamd Allocated to the Hesers es (0 antineed

Aol Diecemdeer 312002
Clash a the Centeal Hoonk of 1T Halizieas
Investmenes st Fair vabue thisugh profic or kes

Undimary shares ! Murual finds

Prolem-moe sh

Cenificates of depos i

Comron il [kink Fid
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[ |
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Notes Lo the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
Deeember A, 2005

I Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dellars)
1 Continued )

i Investments of the Fond Allocated to the Beserves 10 on
terest Sbainriiy =t - IR bl e it Fldeliiy
Hise Ukt Term Pemsions Trpihas izl Mlealical el Dhiath LLEEIL Tl

b 5 ) 5 = 5 %

w ol Diewemben 51, X002 0 ontmasd )

Halanses Deevelkpaent Bask Basiods M
Hahamias (psvermoment US% fmoles b AT
Thahapies [ty Loiporation honds P
Hank of Lhe | o | 1LAE
Preference shanes 11,50
Chlion Hentape Authoniy bonds T
LT mwni ool Harh w15 honels 5.7
Limdecd S1ates ol Mo wa LSS breasury misles b
Lasans 8o Hahanos Cevvernment enbdes - R
an i DAl Bl L )
EALL
1H0
Fibelay Hank (Bahamnus  Laated notes R
The Colle FALEL]| The Bahamas redeemabke werm noes 2 A%
Covemment of the Casman §slinds U538 bonds 3
Lomg Term Ieposi= ENLE ]
salafatod (W ater) lah, Lirmited bospids
mvestienl m linance kases oS e - i 1
v st praspery 5,1 5120

[ ETRARTS 1% EARTE ] P LE3 ]
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The Mational Insurance Fund

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2003
i Expressed in Thousands of Bahamian dollars)

(Continued)

A1, Actoarial Review (Unauodited )

Ihe 97 Actuarial Review of the Fund was conducted as of December 31, 2001, The projections were extended for a sixty-vear period and indicate that the
present value of Toare expenditure will exceed the opening reserves and the present value of Tutare contrbutons By S HLA30 billion as depicied below; the

report and reserves and shortfall caleulations are unawdined.
The report further indicates that the current contribution rate would be insulficient w pay benelits in the long werm.
The report e ludes a number ol recommendations lor changes mthe admimstraton of te Tond. These recommendations, 1 mmplemented. should resultm

the Fundd bemg abde o meet s challenges i the long terme Presently, the Fund 15 mecting all ol s obhgatons,

S (ATillionsy

Keserves as of December 31, 200 1 1.r53
Present value of Tuture contributions 11,588
(23787

Present valdue of Tuture expenditure
(1054400

Present value of shortfall
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Table 1. New Registration Of Employers & Self-Employed Persons

2013 2012

Island/Local Office
/ Employers Self-Employed Total Employers Self-Employed Total

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 107 139 246 96 130 226

Coopers Town 11 26 37 11 17 28
All Abaco 118 165 283 107 147 254
Andros

Fresh Creek 21 14 35 8 11 19

Kemps Bay 11 12 23 8 14 22

Mangrove Cay 7 5 12 n/a n/a n/a

Nicholls Town 36 52 88 58 47 105
All Andros 75 83 158 74 72 146
Bimini & Berry Islands 43 48 91 17 10 27
Cat Island 12 30 42 3 16 19
Crooked Island & Acklins 5 20 25 6 12 18
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 36 54 20 33 40 73

Harbour Island 37 25 62 32 30 62

Rock Sound 24 55 79 10 29 39

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 56 58 114 15 28 43
All Eleuthera 153 192 345 90 127 217
Exuma & Ragged Island 41 60 101 43 51 94
Grand Bahama 271 380 651 194 206 400
Inagua & Mayaguana 14 14 28 5 12 17
Long Island

Deadmans Cay 32 30 62 14 26 40

Simms 10 20 30 7 20 27
All Long Island 42 50 92 21 46 67
New Providence 2,329 2,359 4,688 1,633 3,041 4,674
San Salvador 11 7 18 4 8 12
Total 3,114 3,408 6,522 2,197 3,748 5,945
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Table 2. New Registration Of Insured Persons

2013 2012
Island/Local Office . . . .
Active Inactive Active Inactive

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 83 281 364 88 384 472

Coopers Town 11 74 85 31 118 149
All Abaco 94 355 449 119 502 621
Andros

Fresh Creek 5 37 42 6 70 76

Kemps Bay 5 4 9 2 39 41

Mangrove Cay 2 22 24 n/a n/a n/a

Nicholls Town 10 52 62 9 155 164
All Andros 22 115 137 17 264 281
Bimini & Berry Islands 43 93 136 36 81 117
Cat Island 5 18 23 4 21 25
Crooked Island & Acklins = 12 12 3 9 12
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 19 35 54 13 73 86

Harbour Island 19 82 101 26 96 122

Rock Sound 49 55 104 39 71 110

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 32 63 95 14 90 104
All Eleuthera 119 235 354 92 330 422
Exuma & Ragged Island 23 33 56 71 79 150
Grand Bahama 400 1,262 1,662 412 1,533 1,945
Inagua & Mayaguana 2 11 13 2 18 20
Long Island

Deadmans Cay 6 22 28 2 7 9

Simms - 16 16 6 35 41
All Long Island 6 38 a4 8 42 50
New Providence 1,232 6,402 7,634 1,412 8,073 9,485
San Salvador 36 22 58 28 29 57
Total 1,982 8,596 10,578 2,204 10,981 13,185
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Table 3. Total Net Contribution Income, 2013

Voluntary Installment Total 2012

Island/Local Office Employers Employees  Self-Employed Insured P (Revised)

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 3,217,823 2,064,818 467,342 - 222,063 5,972,046 5,871,624

Coopers Town 451,078 305,772 187,788 - 42,220 986,858 905,769
All Abaco 3,668,901 2,370,590 655,130 - 264,284 6,958,904 6,777,393
Andros

Fresh Creek 272,253 177,381 49,868 - 21,198 520,700 622,027

Kemps Bay 77,387 50,817 12,481 - 7,266 147,951 248,218

Mangrove Cay 26,110 17,244 10,202 - 1,906 55,462 -

Nicholls Town 217,001 122,737 46,311 - 24,168 410,217 429,254
All Andros 592,751 368,179 118,863 - 54,537 1,134,330 1,299,499
Bimini & Berry Islands 918,004 625,731 95,310 - 36,104 1,675,149 1,221,462
Cat Island 98,393 62,911 36,123 - 1,357 198,784 213,136
Crooked Island & Acklins 27,677 17,278 61,865 - 12,445 119,265 156,023
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 468,281 292,132 159,085 - 71,130 990,628 1,088,005

Harbour Island 627,928 437,942 109,038 - 33,645 1,208,553 1,208,181

Rock Sound 391,299 254,975 51,460 - 22,412 720,146 721,035

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 910,403 585,069 164,876 - 23,057 1,683,405 1,516,327
All Eleuthera 2,397,911 1,570,117 484,458 - 150,244 4,602,732 4,533,548
Exuma & Ragged Island 1,328,917 928,979 213,305 - 145,288 2,616,489 2,577,375
Grand Bahama 12,768,373 7,997,033 474,098 - 606,509 21,846,013 20,689,635
Inagua & Mayaguana 331,722 216,480 24,325 - 3,149 575,676 546,234
Long Island

Deadmans Cay 181,670 106,423 187,123 - 13,209 488,425 457,694

Simms 116,260 76,875 67,368 - 3,928 264,431 267,514
All Long Island 297,929 183,298 254,491 - 17,137 752,856 725,208
New Providence 109,337,077 72,137,267 3,233,239 8,087 3,658,016 188,373,686 163,803,110
San Salvador 309,282 184,819 14,484 - 6,159 514,744 501,694

132,076,938 86,662,681 5,665,690 4,955,229 229,368,628 203,044,317
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Table 4. Total Contributions Income, 2009 - 2013 PR SR »

Contribution Income ('000s)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Revised)

Employers $132,429 $118,754 $113,846 $98,723 $93,801
Employees $86,906 $74,438 $66,940 $60,003 $56,968
Self-employed S5,666 S5,183 S4,364 $3,346 S3,447
Voluntarily Insured S8 S1 S1 0 SO
Installment Agreements $4,955 S5,137 S5,766 S5,719 S5,662
Refund of Contributions ($595) (S469) (5429) (S311) (5229)
Total ('000s) $229,369 $203,044 $190,488 $167,479 $159,648
Number of Contributors

Employers 12,612 12,598 12,393 12,564 13,119
Employees 141,000 144,000 141,000 140,933 140,238
Self-employed 8,872 7,644 6,559 5,492 5,392
Voluntarily Insured 3 1 1 1 -
Installment Agreements 7,911 7,946 7,317 6,230 5,196
Total Contributors 170,398 172,189 167,270 165,220 163,945
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Table 5. Benefit & Assistance Claims Received and Awarded

Received Awarded
Benefit Type
2012 2013 2012
Retirement Benefit 2,014 2,046 2,100 1,701
Retirement Grant n/a n/a 119 104
1 ' Invalidity Benefit 356 310 253 270
one- .erm Survivors' Benefit 841 964 753 749
Benefits/ .
) Survivors' Grant n/a n/a 85 93
Assistance
Old Age Non-Contributory Pension 173 180 119 94
Invalidity Assistance 170 165 119 112
Survivors' Assistance 72 81 30 48
Total Long-term 3,626 3,746 3,578 3,171
Sickness Benefit 18,814 19,332 17,976 18,233
Maternity Benefit 3,301 3,590 3,135 3,331
Short-term  Maternity Grant 3,301 3,590 3,120 3,270
Benefits Funeral Benefit 1,622 1,599 1,556 1,517
Unemployment Benefit 7,323 8,167 6,180 6,920
Sickness Assistance 4 14 3 11
Total Short-term 34,365 36,292 31,970 33,282
Medical Care 3,812 3,809 3,144 2,945
) Injury Benefit 2,199 2,052 1,943 1,741
Industrial ; )
. Disablement Benefit & Grant 327 295 82 88
Benefits
Industrial Death 1 2 2
Industrial Funeral 0 0 0 0
Total Industrial 6,339 6,158 5,171 4,775

All Benefits
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Table 6. Short-Term Benefit & Assistance Claims Awarded, 2013

Sickness Maternity Maternity Funeral Unemployment Sickness

Island/Local Office
/ Benefit Benefit Grant Benefit Benefit Assistance

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 523 118 117 29 339 1 1,127

Coopers Town 76 16 18 7 24 - 141
All Abaco 599 134 135 36 363 1 1,268
Andros

Fresh Creek 112 10 10 2 33 - 167

Kemps Bay 59 5 5 2 45 - 116

Nicholls Town 109 11 11 3 61 - 195
All Andros 280 26 26 7 139 - 478
Bimini & Berry Islands 64 14 15 4 40 - 137
Cat Island 43 4 4 - 30 - 81
Crooked Island & Acklins 21 - - - 28 - 49
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 160 21 21 6 81 - 289

Harbour Island 64 17 14 5 6 - 106

Rock Sound 187 20 21 4 - - 232

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 146 17 17 4 142 - 326
All Eleuthera 557 75 73 19 229 - 953
Exuma & Ragged Island 172 40 43 9 112 - 376
Grand Bahama 1,345 487 485 231 1,181 - 3,729
Inagua & Mayaguana 78 2 2 1 24 - 107
Long Island

Deadmans Cay 63 4 4 6 71 - 148

Simms 27 1 3 1 - - 32
All Long Island 90 5 7 7 71 - 180
New Providence 14,680 2,339 2,321 1,240 3,939 2 24,521
San Salvador 47 9 9 2 24 - 91
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Table 7. Short-Term Benefit & Assistance Payments, 2013

Sickness Maternity Maternity Funeral Unemployment Sickness

el it Benefit Benefit Grant Benefit Benefit Assistance

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 344,896 263,564 53,100 49,748 546,663 1,539 1,259,509

Coopers Town 42,742 31,140 8,100 12,513 44,981 - 139,477
All Abaco 387,638 294,704 61,200 62,261 591,643 1,539 1,398,986
Andros

Fresh Creek 44,351 15,924 4,500 3,360 85,477 - 153,613

Kemps Bay 34,676 17,008 2,230 3,360 113,762 = 171,037

Nicholls Town 39,816 15,864 4,950 5,040 143,055 - 208,725
All Andros 118,844 48,796 11,680 11,760 342,296 - 533,375
Bimini & Berry Islands 30,634 38,548 6,300 6,720 55,674 - 137,877
Cat Island 23,604 9,112 1,800 - 34,754 - 69,269
Crooked Island & Acklins 9,769 - - - 23,140 - 32,909
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 102,126 39,244 9,450 10,080 194,364 - 355,264

Harbour Island 42,020 24,154 6,300 10,080 8,047 - 90,601

Rock Sound 91,572 42,583 9,450 6,640 (361) - 149,884

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 121,183 25,030 7,650 6,720 187,707 - 348,290
All Eleuthera 356,901 131,011 32,850 33,520 389,759 - 944,039
Exuma & Ragged Island 113,243 96,953 20,250 14,880 173,836 - 419,162
Grand Bahama 1,344,040 885,748 224,460 389,600 2,368,521 - 5,212,369
Inagua & Mayaguana 33,006 2,245 900 1,680 26,931 - 64,762
Long Island

Grays 37,484 3,798 1,800 10,080 61,007 - 114,168

Simms 15,461 6,742 1,350 1,680 - - 25,233
All Long Island 52,945 10,540 3,150 11,760 61,007 - 139,401
New Providence 10,213,265 5,163,842 1,056,338 2,077,152 6,330,879 745 24,842,221

San Salvador 36,629 26,196 4,050 3,360 33,254 103,489

12,720,517 6,707,695 1,422,978 2,612,693 10,431,691 33,897,858
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Table 8. Long-Term Benefit & Assistance Claims Awarded, 2013

Island/Local Office

Abaco
Marsh Harbour
Coopers Town
All Abaco
Andros
Fresh Creek
Kemps Bay
Nicholls Town
All Abaco
Bimini & Berry Islands
Cat Island
Crooked Island & Acklins
Eleuthera
Governors Harbour
Harbour Island
Rock Sound
Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera
All Eleuthera
Exuma & Ragged Island
Grand Bahama
Inagua & Mayaguana
Long Island
Deadmans Cay
Simms
All Long Island
New Providence
San Salvador

Total
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Retirement
Benefit

74
19
93

18
15

11

33
17
21
20
91
42
403
13

19
11
30
1,367

2,100

Retirement
Grant

66

119

Invalidity
Benefit

N e

o))

51

183

253

Survivors'
Benefit

M

45

10

R W

N W b oo

10
145

507

753

Survivors'
Grant

64

85

OANCP

119

Invalidity
Assistance

70

119

Survivors'
Assistance

20

30

134
29
163

26
15
39

17

42
22

29
133
63
707
14

23
19

2,341

3,578



Island/Local Office

Abaco
Marsh Harbour
Coopers Town

All Abaco

Andros

Fresh Creek
Kemps Bay
Nicholls Town

All Andros

Bimini & Berry Islands

Cat Island

Crooked Island & Acklins

Eleuthera

Governors Harbour

Harbour Island

Rock Sound

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera

All Eleuthera

Exuma & Ragged Island

Grand Bahama

Inagua & Mayaguana

Long Island

Grays
Simms

All Long Island

New Providence

San Salvador

Retirement
Benefit

4,734,144
11,216
4,745,360

727,708
737,262
671,283

2,136,253
811,435
438,633
656,987

1,569,320
860,590
1,204,337
2,159,758
584,720
2,014,928
19,986,893
584,720

1,410,817
533,060
1,943,876
82,471,952
286,603

121,871,646

Invalidity
Benefit

480,521
4,902
485,423

84,751
64,594
84,100
233,445
43,273
42,296
29,633

147,995
77,810
175,482
92,699
77,248
161,466
2,803,003
77,248

112,530
32,093
144,624
9,385,435
17,230

13,917,061

Survivors
Benefit

861,369

861,369

164,416
136,547
193,297
494,260
117,608

61,297

68,358

235,809
74,097
159,719
268,653
76,670
256,582
2,954,560
76,670

177,364
80,333
257,697
11,670,377
39,151

17,596,207

342,713

342,713

72,319
131,046
263,893
467,258

71,992
145,920

39,400

56,563
9,232
108,560
119,762
29,235
93,756
942,415
29,235

78,107
29,492
107,599
3,736,083
40,519

6,311,007

Invalidity
Assistance

359,839

359,839

72,575
137,667
228,173
438,415
82,616
76,422
21,542

86,694
31,431
223,142
80,800
25,132
128,104
1,349,532
25,132

121,591
80,213
201,805
5,402,402
49,089

8,556,964

Table 9. Long-term Benefit & Assistance Payments, 2013

Survisors'
Assistance

90,191

90,191

9,329
34,684
47,961
91,975

6,616

8,862

8,439

4,955
1,231
28,917
14,823
31,982
123,189

22,311
19,324
41,636
644,510

1,097,323

6,868,776
16,118
6,884,894

1,131,098
1,241,799
1,488,707
3,861,604
1,133,541

773,430

824,358

2,101,336
1,054,390
1,900,158
2,736,494
7,792,379
2,686,818
28,159,591
793,006

1,922,721
774,515
2,697,236
113,310,758
432,592

169,350,208
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Table 10. Industrial Benefit Claims Awarded, 2013

Injury Disablement Industrial Industrial

i Medical Care
ISIand/Local Office Benefit Benefit & Grant Death Funeral

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 35 56 - - - 91

Coopers Town 5 4 - - - 9
All Abaco 40 60 - - - 100
Andros

Fresh Creek 2 7 - - - 9

Kemps Bay 5 - - - 9

Nicholls Town 2 1 - - - 3
All Andros 9 12 - - - 21
Bimini & Berry Islands 9 - - - 13
Cat Island - 1 - - - 1
Crooked Island & Acklins 2 2 - - -
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 1 8 - - - 9

Harbour Island 7 7 - - - 14

Rock Sound 3 11 - - - 14

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 37 41 - 1 - 79
All Eleuthera 48 67 - 1 - 116
Exuma & Ragged Island 28 37 1 - - 66
Grand Bahama 364 150 12 1 - 527
Inagua & Mayaguana 2 2 - - - 4
Long Island

Deadmans Cay 3 4 - - - 7

Simms 7 3 - - - 10
All Long Island 10 7 - - - 17
New Providence 2,626 1,592 69 = = 4,287
San Salvador 6 9 - - - 15
Total 3,144 1,943 82 2 - 5,171
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Table 11. Industrial Benefit Payments, 2013

Medical Injury Disablement Industrial Industrial

Isl Local Offi
sang Lol Care Benefit Benefit & Grant Death Funeral

Abaco

Marsh Harbour 18,528 71,350 78,334 15,532 - 183,744

Coopers Town - 2,622 - - - 2,622
All Abaco 18,528 73,972 78,334 15,532 - 186,366
Andros

Fresh Creek - 6,779 20,878 - - 27,657

Kemps Bay - 863 25,034 - - 25,897

Nicholls Town - 4,810 16,730 - - 21,540
All Andros - 12,452 62,642 - - 75,094
Bimini & Berry Islands - 1,234 23,359 1,646 - 26,239
Cat Island 244 907 3,077 - - 4,228
Crooked Island & Acklins - 5,338 3,077 - - 8,415
Eleuthera

Governors Harbour 593 4,450 13,500 11,895 - 30,438

Harbour Island - 7,654 8,619 - - 16,273

Rock Sound 3,020 9,140 33,921 3,613 - 49,694

Spanish Wells & North Eleuthera 5,332 66,222 38,569 7,730 - 117,853
All Eleuthera
Exuma & Ragged Island 7,905 49,293 27,201 - - 84,399
Grand Bahama 127,556 262,118 517,454 66,969 - 974,097
Inagua & Mayaguana 536 1,783 6,155 - - 8,474
Long Island

Grays - 3,415 25,542 3,613 - 32,570

Simms = 7,919 6,155 = - 14,074
All Long Island - 11,335 31,697 3,613 - 46,645
New Providence 11,905,963 2,398,188 3,259,987 227,988 - 17,792,126
San Salvador - 6,986 13,439 - - 20,425

12,069,677 2,911,071 4,121,031 338,986 19,440,765
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Table 12. Pensions in Payment at Year-End, 2009 - 2013

Long-term Benefits

Retirement Benefit 20,915 19,288 18,375 17,378 16,796
Invalidity Benefit 2,537 2,401 2,288 2,162 2,171
Survivor's Benefit 4,936 4,477 4,209 3,803 3,940
Old-Age Non-Cont. Pension 1,975 2,024 2,175 2,275 2,477
Invalidity Assistance 2,695 2,648 2,685 2,676 2,747
Survivor's Assistance 394 405 444 504 548
Total 33,452 31,243 30,176 28,798 28,679
Industrial Benefits

Disablement 734 676 637 607 580
Industrial Death 63 61 69 67 66
Total 797 737 706 674 646
All Benefits 34,249 31,980 30,882 29,472 29,325
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Table 13. Short-Term Benefits & Assistance, 2009 - 2013

Amount Paid ('000s)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Sickness Benefit $12,720 $11,873 $11,204 $10,073 $10,056
Maternity Benefit $6,708 $6,831 $6,664 $6,777 $6,998
Maternity Grant $1,423 $1,481 $1,487 $1,502 $1,430
Funeral Benefit $2,613 $2,487 $2,459 $2,295 $2,225
Unemployment Benefit $10,432 $9,238 $7,080 $8,759 20,810
Sickness Assistance S2 (S9) S1 S9 S6
Total Paid ('000s) $33,898 $31,901 $28,895 $29,415 $41,525
Number of Claims Awarded
Sickness Benefit 17,976 18,233 19,311 17,528 17,270
Maternity Benefit 3,135 3,331 3,446 3,607 3,145
Maternity Grant 3,120 3,270 3,435 3,563 3,580
Funeral Benefit 1,556 1,517 1,557 1,472 1,476
Unemployment Benefit 6,180 6,920 4,884 5,655 14,071
Sickness Assistance 3 11 8 11 18
Total Awarded 31,970 33,282 32,641 31,836 39,560
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Table 14. Long-Term Benefits & Assistance, 2009 - 2013

Amount Paid ('000s)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Retirement Benefit & Grant $121,872 $108,488 $99,735 $90,292 $82,048
Invalidity Benefit $13,917 $13,129 $12,248 $11,424 $10,644
Survivor's Benefit & Grant $17,596 $16,888 $15,287 $14,082 $13,893
Old-Age Non-Cont. Pension $6,311 $6,516 $6,683 $6,779 $7,023
Invalidity Assistance $8,557 $8,512 $8,060 $8,018 $7,786
Survivor's Assistance $1,097 $1,028 $1,388 $1,299 $1,598
Total Paid ('000s) $169,350 $154,561 $143,401 $131,893 $122,992
Number of Claims Awarded

Retirement Benefit & Grant 2,219 1,805 1,802 1,741 1,977
Invalidity Benefit 253 270 277 189 201
Survivor's Benefit & Grant 838 842 842 452 479
Old-Age Non-Cont. Pension 119 94 108 146 134
Invalidity Assistance 119 112 138 138 137
Survivor's Assistance 30 48 40 41 44
Total Awarded 3,578 3,171 3,207 2,707 2,972
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| Amount Paid ('000s)
2013

Medical Care $12,070
Injury Benefit $2,911
Disablement Benefit & Grant 54,121
Industrial Death $339
Total Paid ('000s) $19,441

2012

(Revised)
$6,843

$1,961
$4,187

$352

$13,343

Table 15. Industrial Benefits, 2009 - 2013

2011

$5,886
$1,694
$3,577

$386

$11,543

2010

$8,708
$1,832
$3,763

$342

$14,645

2009
$8,566
$1,441
$3,871

$325

$14,203

Number of Claims Awarded

Medical Care 3,144
Injury Benefit 1,943
Disablement Benefit & Grant 82
Industrial Death 2

Industrial Funeral -

Total Awarded 5,171
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2,945
1,741
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4,775

2,919
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4,698

2,481
1,689
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4,242

2,263
1,456
49

1

3,769






